Republic of Iraq Ministry of Higher Education And Scientific Research Al-Nahrain University College of Science Department of Chemistry



Serum 4-Hydroxy-2-nonenal and Induced nitric oxide Synthase in Hypertension and Hypertension with kidney disease Patients

A Thesis

Submitted to the College of Science Al-Nahrain University as partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree of Master in Chemistry/(Biochemistry).

By:

Ali Dhafer Hameed B.Sc.Chemistry/College of Science / Al-Nahrain University (2014)

Supervised by: Dr. Alaa H. Jawad (Assist. Prof.)

Jan 2017

Rabi II 1438

بِسْمِ ٱللهِ ٱلرَّحْمَنِ ٱلرَّحِيمِ

﴿إِنَّا فَتَحْنَا لَكَ فَتْحًا مُّبِينًا (1) لِّيَغْفِرَ لَكَ اللَّهُ مَا تَقَدَّمَ مِن ذَنبِكَ وَمَا تَأَخَّرَ وَيُتِمَّ نِعْمَتَهُ عَلَيْكَ وَيَهْدِيَكَ صِرَاطًا مُسْتَقِيمًا (2) وَيَنصُرَكَ اللَّهُ نَصْرًا عَزِيزًا (3)

سورة الفتح:1-3

Dedication

To The Realest And Purest Love In The World

Mother

And TO All My Family

And to my country Iraq

And to **Iraqí soldíers**, those who are far from as now but keepíng us contínue lífe

Ali Dhafer

L

Acknowledgment

First of all I would like to thank our **God** for his merciful and continuous help through my life.

I am very thankful for chemistry department of college of science of al-Nahrain University for give me research part.

I thank Dr Alaa the supervisor for my study.

I am very grateful for friendly assistance and continuous kindly advices by Dr. Perry Habeeb in different stages along this study.

I also very thankful to staff of Al-yarmouk teaching hospital for their help to gain and stored sample in my study.

I am specially thankful to my friends for their assistance and kind standing behind me along study.

Appreciable thanks are to those brave men on the fire borders, saving their citizens, families, and land, make us continue life, work and study, sacrificing their own souls, they deserve our success as a gift.

Summary

Hypertension (HT) And related diseases such as chronic kidney disease(CKD) share in that one of the main reasons for them is to increase the oxidative stress, which in turn increases the severity of the disease and exacerbation of symptoms. Reactive molecules produced from oxidative stress, in addition to causing tissue damage by oxidation of biomolecules like DNA, lipids, proteins and sugars; they are lead to the formation of mediators with potent inflammatory effect. The objective of this study was to investigate some markers of oxidative stress in hypertension (HT) and HT with CKD patients in addition to some biochemical parameters related to these diseases.

This study involved 84 male subjects aged between (25-60) year equally divided into three groups, first and second one belong to HT and HT with CKD patients respectively from Al-yarmouk Teaching hospital, while the third one for apparently healthy 28 subjects considered as control group. For each subject in the three groups these markers and parameters were evaluated; 4-hydroxy-2-nonenl(4HNE), induced nitric oxide synthase(iNOS), albumin, urea, creatinine ,total serum protein.

The results were compared to control; There was a significantly higher (p<0.01) in 4HNE, and iNOS levels in both HT and HT with CKD patients, while serum albumin and Total serum protein shows significantly (p<0.01) lower levels in both groups. The elevation levels of oxidative stress markers may be due to oxidative damage of tissues that caused by these inflammatory diseases. Was concluded that there was a positive relation between oxidation results from these diseases and their developments and suggest increase need to intake of antioxidants as precaution in front of these disease.

Contents

| Summary | Ι |
|-----------------|----|
| Contents | II |
| List of Tables | V |
| List of Figures | V |
| Abbreviations | IX |

Chapter One Introduction & Literature Review

| 1.1 | Hypertension | 2 |
|-------|---|----|
| 1.1.1 | Definition of Blood Pressure | 2 |
| 1.1.2 | Definition of Hypertension | 2 |
| 1.1.3 | Symptoms of Hypertension | 2 |
| 1.1.4 | Hypertension Causes | 3 |
| 1.1.5 | Risk Factor of Hypertension | 4 |
| 1.2 | Chronic kidney disease | 6 |
| 1.2.1 | Difenition | 6 |
| 1.2.2 | Symptoms of kidney disease | 6 |
| 1.3 | Oxidants | 7 |
| 1.3.1 | Free Radicals | 7 |
| 1.3.2 | Reactive oxygen species | 8 |
| 1.4 | Oxidative stress | 10 |
| 1.5 | Oxidative stress and Arterial Diseases | 11 |
| 1.6 | Definition of Oxidative Stress Biomarkers | 12 |
| 1.7 | Oxidative Stress Biomarker | 12 |
| 1.7.1 | 4-Hydroxy-2-nonenal(4HNE) | 13 |

| 1.7.2 | Indused nitric oxide(inos) | 14 |
|-------|----------------------------|----|
| 1.8 | Antioxidant Molecules | 16 |
| 1.8.1 | Albumin | 17 |
| 1.8.2 | Creatinine | 19 |
| 1.8.3 | Urea | 21 |
| | Aim of Study | 22 |

Chapter Two Materials & Methods

| 2.1 | Subjects | 24 |
|-------|--|----|
| 2.2 | Materials | 24 |
| 2.2.1 | Chemicals and biological materials | 24 |
| 2.2.2 | Instruments | 25 |
| 2.3 | Methods | 25 |
| 2.3.1 | Blood Sampling | 25 |
| 2.3.2 | Determination of Blood Pressure(BP) | 25 |
| 2.3.3 | Determination of Body Mass Index (BMI) | 26 |
| 2.3.4 | Determination of Serum 4-hydroxy-2-nonenal Level (4HNE) | 27 |
| 2.3.5 | Determination of Serum Indused nitric oxide synthase (iNOS) | 29 |
| 2.3.6 | Determination of Albumin | 30 |
| 2.3.7 | Determination of Serum Urea | 31 |
| 2.3.8 | Determination of Serum Creatinine | 33 |
| 2.3.9 | Determination of Serum protein | 34 |
| 2.4 | Statistics Analysis | 35 |

Chapter Three Results & Discussion

| 3.1 | Patient Descriptive Data | 37 |
|-------|---|----|
| 5.1 | r allent Descriptive Data | 57 |
| 3.1.1 | Distribution of groups | 37 |
| | | |
| 3.1.2 | Clinical feature of groups | 38 |
| 3.2 | Oxidative Stress Markers and Parameters in HT,HT with | 40 |
| | CKD, and Control. | |
| 3.2.1 | 4-Hydroxy -2-nonenal (4HNE) levels | 40 |
| 3.2.2 | Indused nitric oxide synthase Levels | 43 |
| | | |
| 3.2.3 | Serum Albumin Levels | 47 |
| 3.2.4 | Serum Urea levels | 52 |
| | | |
| 3.2.5 | Serum Creatinine Level | 56 |
| 3.2.6 | Total Serum protein Level(TSP): | 61 |
| | | |

List of Tables

| Table No. | Title | Page |
|-----------|--|------|
| 2.1 | Chemicals and biological materials used in the study | 23 |
| 2.2 | Apparatus and Equipment | 24 |
| 3.1 | Clinical Feature of Studying Group | 38 |
| 3.2 | Values of 4HNE Between Groups | 40 |
| 3.3 | Values of iNOS in Patients and Control Group | 42 |
| 3.4 | Values of Albumin Between Groups | 46 |
| 3.5 | Values of Urea in Studying Groups | 51 |
| 3.6 | Values of Creatinine in Studying Groups | 55 |
| 3.7 | Values of Total serum protein in Studying Groups | 60 |
| 3-8 | Correlation coefficient between parameters in patients group | 63 |

List of Figures

| | | - |
|-----------|--|------|
| Figure No | Title | Page |
| 1-1 | Resources and the effects of reactive oxygen and nitrogen species | 9 |
| 1-2 | Reactive oxygen species in the arterial .(NO nitrogen oxide , AII angiotensin) | 11 |

| 1-3 | chemical structure of 4-hydroxy-2-nonenal | 13 |
|------|--|----|
| 1-4 | Producing (Inos) | 15 |
| 1-5 | Structure of Albumin | 17 |
| 1-6 | Overview of steps leading to Cys-34 oxidation and | 18 |
| | Thiolation | |
| 1-7 | Metabolic pathway of creatinine | 19 |
| 2-1 | Standard curve for 4HNE | 28 |
| 2-2 | Standard curve for iNOS | 30 |
| 3-1 | Distribution of studying group | 37 |
| 3-2 | Mean Conc. (ng/ml) of Oxidative Marker 4HNE for | 41 |
| | Studied Groups | |
| 3-3 | iNOS Levels in Patients and Control Group | 43 |
| 3-4 | Correlation Directly Between 4HNE and iNOS for | 44 |
| | hypertension Groups. | |
| 3-5 | Correlation Directly Between 4HNE and iNOS for | 45 |
| 3-6 | hypertension with kidney disease Groups | 45 |
| 5-0 | Correlation Directly Between 4HNE and iNOS for Control Groups | 43 |
| 3-7 | Values for Albumin [g/dL] in Patients and Control Groups | 47 |
| 3-8 | Correlation Between Albumin and 4HNE in HT group | 48 |
| 3-9 | Correlation Between Albumin and 4HNE in HT with CKD group | 49 |
| 3-10 | Correlation Between Albumin and 4HNE For Control | 49 |
| 3-11 | group Correlation Between Albumin and iNOS in HT group | 50 |
| 3-12 | Correlation Between Albumin and iNOS in HT with CKD group | 50 |
| 3-13 | Figure(3-13): Correlation Between Albumin and iNOS For Control group. | 51 |

| 3-14 | Values for Urea [g/L] in Patients and Control Groups | 52 |
|------|--|----|
| 3-15 | Correlation Between Urea and 4HNE in HT patients | 53 |
| | GAgarose gel (1%), 5 V/cm for 1 hr., Stained with | |
| | Ethidium Bromide | |
| 3-16 | Correlation Between Urea and 4HNE in HT with CKD | 53 |
| | patients | |
| 3-17 | Correlation Between Urea and 4HNE For Control group | 54 |
| 3-18 | Correlation Between Urea and iNOS in HT patients | 54 |
| 3-19 | Correlation Between Urea and iNOS in HT with CKD | 54 |
| | patients | |
| 3-20 | Correlation Between Urea and iNOS For Control group | 55 |
| 3-21 | Values for Creatinine [g/L] in Patients and Control | 56 |
| | Groups | |
| 3-22 | Correlation Between Creatinine and 4HNE in HT | 57 |
| | patients | |
| 3-23 | Correlation Between Creatinine and 4HNE in HT with | 57 |
| | CKD patients | |
| 3-24 | Correlation Between Creatinine and 4HNE For Control | 57 |
| | group | |
| 3-25 | Correlation Between Creatinine and iNOS in HT | 58 |
| | patients | |
| 3-26 | Correlation Between Creatinine and iNOS in HT with | 59 |
| | CKD patients | |
| 3-27 | Correlation Between Creatinine and iNOS For Control | 59 |
| | group | |
| 3-28 | Correlation Between Protein and 4HNE in HT patients | 60 |

| 3-29 | Correlation Between Protein and 4HNE in HT with | 61 |
|------|---|----|
| | CKD patients | |
| 3-30 | Correlation Between Protein and For Control group | 61 |
| 3-31 | Correlation Between protein and iNOS in HT patients | 62 |
| 3-32 | Correlation Between protein and iNOS in HT with | 62 |
| | CKD patients | |
| 3-33 | Correlation Between protein and iNOS in Control | 62 |
| | group | |

Abbreviations

| Ang II | Angiotensin II |
|-------------------------------|---|
| BMI | Body Mass Index |
| BP | Blood pressure |
| cGMP | cyclic guanosine monophosphate |
| СКД | chronic kidney disease |
| CV | Cardiovascular |
| DNA | Deoxyribonucleic Acid |
| eNOS | Endothelial NO-Synthase |
| FAD | flavin adenine dinucleotide |
| FMN | Flavin mononucleotide |
| GWAS | Genome-wide association studies |
| H ₂ O ₂ | Hydrogen Peroxide |
| HSA | Human Serum Albumin |
| 4HNE | 4-hydroxy-2-nonenal |
| HT | Hypertension |
| iNOS | Indused nitric oxide synthase |
| KGDH | α-ketoglutarate dehydrogenase |
| LOO [.] | Lipid Peroxy Radical |
| NADH | Nicotinamide Adenine Dinucleotide |
| NADPH | Nicotinamide Adenine Dinucleotide phosphate |
| nNOS | neuronal nitric oxide synthase |
| NO | Nitric oxide |
| NOS | Nitric oxide synthase |
| O ₂ . | Superoxide |

| OH. | Hydroxyl Radical |
|------|---------------------------|
| ONOO | Peroxynitrite |
| PCR | Polymerase Chain Reaction |
| PDH | pyruvate dehydrogenase |
| RNS | Reactive Nitrogen Species |
| ROS | Reactive Oxygen Species |
| sGC | soluble guanylyl cyclase |
| SNP | Sentinel blood pressure |
| SOD | Superoxide Dismutase |

Chapter one

Introduction



Giterature Review

1.1 Hypertension:

1.1.1Definition of Blood Pressure :

Blood pressure is a measure of the force exercised circulation on the walls of the major arteries (1), and the pressure wave that moves along the arteries with each heartbeat and felt easily and pulse, is created higher (systolic) pressure from the measured contracting heart and lower (diastolic) pressure also fills the heart (2). The systolic pressure happens when the left ventricle is most contracted; the diastolic pressure occurs when the left ventricle is most relaxed prior to the next contraction. The normal blood pressure within the range of 100–140 mmHg systolic and 60–90 mmHg diastolic(3,4)

1.1.2 Definition of Hypertension :

Hypertension (HT), also known as high blood pressure or arterial hypertension, is a chronic medical case in which the blood pressure in the arteries is elevated. Hypertension is present if the blood pressure is constantly at or higher 140/90 millimeters mercury (mmHg) for most adults; different criteria apply to children.(3)

1.1.3 Symptoms of Hypertension:

Hypertension is a disease which in its early stages is almost without obvious symptoms it's identification is usually through screening. This symptoms includes a headache, heavyweights in the head, movement is slowly, a redness and warm to touch feeling the body, swelling and strained vessels, fullness of the pulse, swelling of the skin, colored and dense urine, Anorexia , weakness eyesight, impairment of thinking, yawning, lethargy, rupture the vascular , and stroke(5,6).

1.1.4 Hypertension Causes

Primary hypertension

Results of high blood pressure from a complex interactions between a genes and the environmental factors. It was a lot of common genetic variants to identify with small effects on blood pressure (7), as well as some genetic variants rare with large effects on blood pressure .Also, GWAS have identified 35 genetic positions related to blood pressure; it has been found on 12 of these genetic spatial affecting newly blood pressure (8). Sentinel each SNP positions and has shown a new genetic identification of the relationship with the DNA in several CPG sites nearby. This goalkeeper SNP is located inside the genes associated with vascular smooth muscle and kidney function. DNA can affect in somehow linking common variations in the genes to an alternative multiple phenomena, although the mechanisms underlying these associations are not understood. It showed variable single test carried out in this studying for 35 sentinel SNP (known and unknown) this genetic variants individually or in total share of the risk of clinical phenomena associated with hypertension(8).

Blood pressure increases with age and the risk of becoming hypertensive in life at a later time not too bad. There are several environmental factors that affect blood pressure A high percentage of salt increases blood pressure in salt individuals with sensitive . Lack of exercise, stress, obesity, (9) and gloom it can play a role in individual cases (10). It is believed that insulin resistance, which is common in obesity, a component of (metabolic syndrome), as well as contributing to the high blood pressure. events in early life, like low birth weight, maternal smoking pregnant women, lack of breast-feeding may be a risk for hypertension adults factors, although the mechanisms linking these exposures to high blood adult pressure is still not clear (11).

Secondary hypertension

Results of secondary high blood pressure from a specific reason. kidney disease it is the most common cause of secondary hypertension, it is also possible be caused by high blood pressure because of endocrine conditions, such as hyperthyroidism, hypothyroidism, acromegaly, hyperthyroidism and pheochromocytoma. (12.13) other reasons for secondary hypertension include sleep apnea, pregnancy, narrowing of the aorta, and excessive consumption of licorice and some drugs, herbaceous remedies and illegal drugs. (12.14) It was found exposure to arsenic via drinking water to bind with high blood pressure

(15,16).

1.1.5Risk Factor of Hypertension(17)

*Age. The risk of hypertension raises as your aged. during early middle age, or almost age 45, hypertension is most common in men. Women are more likely to develop high blood pressure after reaching the age of 65.

*Race. hypertension is especially common among blacks, mostly developing in an earlier age much more than it does in whites. Serious complications, likes stroke, heart attack and kidney failure, also it's more common in blacks.

* Family history. hypertension tends to run in families. Genetic factors likely play some role in high blood pressure, heart disease, and other related conditions. However, it is also possibly that people with a family history of hypertension share common environments and other potential factors that increase their risk.

* Overweight or obese. The more weight you need more blood to supply oxygen and nutrients to your tissues. As the volume of blood circulation through blood vessels increases, so does the pressure on the walls of the arteries.

* Not to physical activity. People who are inactive tend to have highest heart rates. The higher your heart rate, the harder your heart should works with each systole and the more powerful the force on your arteries. physical inactivity also increases the risk of being obese.

* smoking . Not limited on smoking or chewing tobacco immediately increase your blood pressure temporarily, but the chemicals in tobacco products can damage the lining of your walls artery . This may cause narrow in your artery increasing your blood pressure.

* A lot of salt (sodium) in your diet. A large amount of sodium in your diet can cause your body to keep fluid, and this increases blood pressure.

* Very little potassium in your diet. Potassium helps for the balance the amount of sodium in your cells. If you don't take enough potassium in your diet or keep enough potassium, you may accumulate a large amount of sodium in your blood.

* specific chronic disease. specific chronic conditions also may raises your risk of hypertension, like kidney disease, diabetes and sleep apnea occasionally pregnancy contributes to hypertension.

High blood pressure (BP) is one of the main factors causing the disease, which contributes to the deterioration of kidney function. The presence of kidney disease is a medical reason by the subscriber to find and underappreciated from high blood pressure-resistant.(18) Therefore, treatment of hypertension has become the most important intervention in the management of all forms of chronic kidney disease (CKD).

The prevalence of chronic kidney disease (CKD) continues to increase worldwide as does end stage kidney disease. The most common, but not only, causes of CKD are hypertension and diabetes. CKD is linked with a significant increase in cardiovascular (CV) risk as most patients with CKD die of a CV cause. Moreover, CV risk increases in proportion to the decline in estimated glomerular filtration rate falls below 60 mL/min. CV causes of death in CKD are more common than those from cancer; as a result, the identification and reduction of CKD is a public health priority. Hypertension is a key pathogenic factor that contributes to the deterioration of kidney function(19). The kidney is both a cause and a victim of high blood pressure.

1.2Chronic kidney disease:

1.2.1 Difenition:

CKD,(also Chronic kidney disease. or called chronic kidney failure)(20) is a condition that affects the function of the kidney, which can progress over time to kidney failure. When the kidneys fail, dialysis or a kidney transplant is needed to support life, many diseases can causeCKD. The most common are diabetes and high blood pressure. High Blood pressure puts more pressure on the blood vessels throughout the body, including the kidney filters (nephrons). Hypertension is the number two cause of kidney failure (21).

1.2.2Symptoms of kidney disease:

Symptoms of chronic kidney disease development with time if kidney damage evolves slowly. symptoms of kidney disease may include:

- Vomiting
- Nausea
- Anorexia
- stress and weaknesses
- Trouble sleeping
- The changes in urine output
- Decline in mental sharpness
- Muscle cramps and spasms
- Hiccups
- Swelling of the feet and ankles
- Persistent itches
- Pain in Chest, if fluid builds around the lining of the heart
- Shortness of breathing, if fluid builds up inside the lungs

• High blood pressure that's difficult to control

The symptoms of kidney disease are often nonspecific, and that is meaning they can also be caused by other diseases. And that because the kidneys are highly adaptable and able to compensation for lost function, the symptoms may not appear until irreversible damage has occurred (22,23).

1.3 Oxidants & Antioxidant

1.3.1 Free Radicals :

A free radical is defined as any atom or molecule that contains unpaired electrons and has independent existence(hence, the term free). It uses a point to represent the types of free radicals. The abstraction or gain of one electron by a non radical molecule may (or may not) convert it to a radical species. Free radicals can have positive, negative, or neutral charges [reactions (1:3:1:1) and (1:3:1:2)]. (24)

A \rightarrow minus one electron \rightarrow A+• (1:3:1:1)

 $B \rightarrow plus one electron \rightarrow B^{-\bullet}$ (1:3:1:2)

A classic reaction is the radiation that is caused by homolysis of water yielding hydroxyl radical (•OH) and a hydrogen atom (H•), the simplest kind of free radical. Examples Nitric oxide (NO.), superoxide(O_2^{-}), hydroxyl radical (.OH), lipid peroxy radical (LOO.)(25).

NO, An free Radical agent signal transducing free, and synthesized natural \cdot evolution by synthase nitric oxide (NOS) are similar enzyme that oxidizes L-arginine to L- citrulline and found in a variety of cell types, including vascular endothelial cells, nerve cells, smooth muscle cells, platelets, macrophages, and neutrophils (26,27). • NO is a small lipophilic molecule and has a biological half- life of few seconds. Thus, it can be easily spread to and through membranes and plasma lipoproteins. As a result of free radicals, \cdot NO reacts easily with other types of extreme (eg, O_2^{-1} , lipid alkoxyl [LO \cdot], and peroxyl [LOO \cdot] extremists) and centers metals from metalloproteins. The most well-characterized binding metal work \cdot NO has an ability to linking heme iron from the soluble guanylyl cyclase (SGC) and stimulate the

formation of cyclic guanosine monophosphate(cGMP) (28). This activates the movement of ion channels and compound-dependent, low calcium levels within cells membrane, and let the smooth muscles to relax. Thus, \cdot NO it has been identified as a factor derived from the endothelium relaxation and as a result of the central modulator of blood pressure (28). by stimulating the SGC NO' also prevents platelet aggregation and blood vessel wall adhesion of

platelets.

1.3.2 Reactive Oxygen Species (ROS) & RNS

Reactive oxygen species (ROS) is a group which are either free radicals or molecular species capable of generating free radicals, Examples include singlet oxygen, superoxide, peroxides, , and hydroxyl radical In a biological context, ROS which is formed as a naturally byproduct of the natural metabolism of oxygen and have important roles in cellular signal and homeostasis. but, through times of environmental stress (like, UV or heat exposure), ROS levels can raise dramatically(29). And This may lead to severe damage to cell structures. Cumulatively, this is called oxidative stress. ROS are also created by exogenous sources like ionizing radiation (30). The

limited of molecular oxygen (O₂) producing superoxide (O₂-) and is the precursor for most other reactive oxygen species:(29).

In physiological conditions, low level ROS play a role in the protection of the organism, while high levels of ROS may cause damage to the structures of the cell, nucleic acids, lipids, proteins (32,38). Reactive nitrogen species (RNS) is a collective term that includes nitric oxide radical (NO •), peroxynitrite (ONOO –), nitrogen dioxide radical (NO₂ •), and other oxides of nitrogen and products arising when NO • reacts with $O_2 • -$, RO •, and H • NO • . NO • plays significant role in cellular signaling, vasodilation, and immune response. It is a highly reactive small uncharged molecule containing one unpaired electron, therefore considered a free radical. It has a half-life of 15 s and can promptly diffuse across the membrane because of it's uncharged state. Endogenous NO • is formed in the biological tissues via the action of NOS where l -arginine and oxygen are changed over into NO • and citrulline via a fi ve-electron oxidative process. The reaction requires the presence of many cofactors for example FAD, FMN, NADPH, tetrahydrobiopterin, and heme (33,34). An isoform of NOS which is subject to regulation by inflammatory

mediators is expressed in macrophages, and is termed as iNOS (35). iNOS is independent of calcium and calmodulin ions. Once activated, it produces a lot of NO • for as long as the inflammatory stimulus is available and kills or inhibits pathogens. iNOS is controlled by phosphorylation/dephosphorylation via protein kinases; in its phosphorylated form, the activity is decreased. eNOS can also be managed through phosphorylation/dephosphorylation. iNOS can also bind calmodulin, though calcium has little effect on its activity(36). rather than other signaling molecules which act through receptors, NO • diffuses out of the cell where it is produced and diffuses in target cells to transmit signals and interact with itis molecular target, e.g., proteins, nucleic acids, and other free radicals like superoxide (28,37,38,39).



Figure (1-1) : Resources and the effects of reactive oxygen and nitrogen species (36)

1.4 Oxidative Stress

Oxidative stress it's reflects an imbalance between the systemic manifestation of reactive oxygen species and a biological system's capacity to quickly detoxification the responsive intermediates or to repair the damage(28, 40,41,42). Disturbances in the the normal redox condition of cells it can creating dangerous impacts amid the generation of peroxides and free radicals that harm all parts of the cell, for example, proteins, lipids, and DNA(42,43).

Oxidative stress leads to many pathophysiological conditions in the including neurodegenerative diseases such as Parkinson's body(44). disease and Alzheimer's disease, chronic fatigue syndrome , gene mutations and atherosclerosis, heart and blood vessel cancers, inflammatory disturbance congestive heart attack and • heart. diseases(45, 46). Oxidative tissue damage stress causes through promoting various mechanisms including lipid peroxidation, DNA damage, and protein modification. These operations have resulted in the pathogenesis of many systemic diseases including kidney. The kidney is an organ highly vulnerable to damage caused by ROS, the plenty of long-chain polyunsaturated fatty possibly because of acids in the composition in the kidneys(47).

1.5Oxidative stress and Arterial Diseases:

oxidative stress change many functions of the endothelium, including modulation of vasomotor tone. Inhibition of nitric oxide (NO \cdot) by superoxide and other reactive oxygen species (ROS) it seems that happening in cases like hypertension, diabetes , hypercholesterolemia, And cigarette smoking. You may lose NO \cdot related to these traditional risk factors in part explain why they prepare to hardening of the arteries (48).

ROS are raise in hypertension in response to vessel stimulation by mechanical stretch or AngII. reaction of ROS with endothelium released NO inhibits vasodilatory or antisclerotic effects of NO and thus can aggravate the disease (49).

(Ang II) levels are raised but ROS is actually dicline, probably due to the accompanying increase in super oxide dismutase (SOD) expression(50). This ability to increase antioxidant defenses may be enough for protection the blood vessels from low levels of oxidant stress, allowing ROS to function as signaling molecules. However, when ROS yield becomes overwhelming, compensatory mechanisms are inadequate and pathophysiological consequence(51). Endothelial cells are able to synthesize and secrete a wide range of anti atherosclerotic substances, the most characterized of which is nitric oxide (NO), a gas produced from the metabolism of L-arginine by constitutive endothelial NO synthase(52).

Subsequently the bioavailability of NO, which leads to vasoconstriction, platelet aggregation and adhesion of neutrophils to the endothelium. overload ROS production may cause oxidative damage to biological macromolecules such as lipids, DNA, carbohydrates and proteins (53,54).



Figure (1-2) Reactive oxygen species in the arterial .(NO nitrogen oxide , AII angiotensin)(53).

1.6 Definition of Oxidative Stress Biomarkers:

A commonly used definition is which proposed in 2001 by the biomarkers definition working group by the national institute of health and food and drug administration (NIH/FDA) in the USA " a feature that is objectively measured and evaluated as an indicator of normal biological methods, pathogenic processes, or pharmacologic responses to therapeutic intervention (55). There are three types of biomarkers:

(1) pharmacodynamics markers for monitoring pharmacological response.

(2) disease biomarkers-used to monitor and diagnose the development of a disease.

(3) The effectiveness of drug /toxicity biomarkers- used to monitor the effectiveness or toxicity of treatment regime.(56)

1.7 Oxidative Stress Biomarker

1.7.1 4-Hydroxy-2-nonenal

A. Definition:

4-hydroxy-2-nonenal (4HNE), a high toxicity product of lipid peroxidation, is an inhibitor of mitochondrial respiration. 4HNE exerts its influence on respiration by inhibiting α -ketoglutarate dehydrogenase (KGDH)(57,58). A



В



4-hydroxy-2-nonenal

Figure (1-3): Chemical structure of 4-hydroxy-2-nonenal (4HNE)(59)

Because of the KGDH of the central role in the metabolism and emerging evidence that free radicals contribute to mitochondrial dysfunction associated with many diseases, it is of great interest to further characterize the inhibition mechanism. It was found that free radicals and peroxide products generated during the process may be responsible for these effects because of its ability to damage cellular components like membranes, proteins and DNA. (4HNE), a top end product of lipid peroxidation, a protein particle. Intraperitoneal treatment with one kidney carcinogen, nitrilotriacetate ferric, causing oxidative stress (60). KGDH and pyruvate dehydrogenase (PDH) are structurally catalytic complexes and multi-enzymes similar, suggesting a common pattern of suppression. To determine the mechanism of inhibition were examined for the effects of HNE to purify KGDH and PDH. This disruption by HNE was significantly enhanced in the presence of substrates that limit the sulfur atoms of lipoic acid covalently bound to the sub-units of the E2 KGDH and PDH. (61)

In addition, the loss of enzyme activity resulting from HNE closely linked with a decrease in the availability of lipoic acid group Silvhedril. The use of antibodies lipoic acid because the anti-HNE adjustment lipoic acid in each of the purified enzyme preparations mitochondria, and that this modification depends on the presence of substrates. These results identify a potential mechanism where the production of free radicals and subsequent lipid peroxidation leads to a certain modification of KGDH and PDH and inhibition of mitochondrial respiration-related NADH . HNE can contribute to improved accumulation of modified proteins oxidatively by the devaluation of ubiquitin / proteasome dependent on the intracellular proteolysis (58,61).

1.7.2 Induced nitric oxide synthase(iNOS)

A. Definition

Nitric oxide synthases (NOSs) are a family of enzymes stimulating the production of nitric oxide (NO) from L-arginine.(73,74) NO is an important cellular signaling molecule. It also helps modulate vascular tone, airway tone ,insulin secretion , and peristalsis, and is involved in angiogenesis and neural development. It may work as a retrograde neurotransmitter. Mediated nitric

oxide in mammals that calcium calmodulin similarities enzyme controlled eNOS (endothelial NOS) and nNOS (neuronal NOS). Participates (67,69) and the inducible isoform, iNOS, in the immune response, connecting calmodulin in the concentrations of the relevant physiologically, and does not produce as an immune defense mechanism, as NO is a free radical with an unpaired electron. It is the direct cause of septic shock and it may work in autoimmune disease. NOS catalyzes the reaction:(63)

L-arginine + 3/2 NADPH + 1/2 H+ + 2 $O_2 \leftrightarrow$ citrulline + nitric oxide + 2H₂O + 3/2 NADP+

NOS isoforms stimulate other leak and side reactions, like superoxide production at the expense of NADPH. In this way, this stoichiometry is not generally observed, and reflecting the three electrons supplied per NO by NADPH. The inducible isoform iNOS produces huge amounts of NO as a defense mechanism. It is synthesized by many types of cell in response to cytokines and is an important factor in the response of the body to attack by bacterial infection ,parasites , and tumor growth. It is also the cause of septic shock and may play a role in many diseases with an autoimmune etiology. eNOS is the primary controller of smooth muscle tone (65).

an increased iNOS production may reduce smooth muscle contractions and therefore affect embryo transport, which may consequently leads to ectopic

pregnancy (64). Its chemical structure is below in figure(1-4).



Figure (1-4): Producing (iNOS)(64).

1.8Antioxidant Molecules

An antioxidant is a molecule that prevent the oxidation of other molecules. Oxidation is a chemical reaction that can produce free radicals, resulting in chain reactions that may hurt cells. Antioxidants like thiols or ascorbic acid (vitamin C) terminate these chain reactions. To balance the oxidative state, plants and animals maintain complex systems of overlapping antioxidants, like glutathione and enzymes (e.g., catalase and superoxide dismutase) produced inside or vitamin C, vitamin A and vitamin E it was received by ingestion.(66)

Type of Antioxidant

There are three primary types of antioxidants exist in nature. Which included phytochemicals, vitamins, and enzymes:

*Enzymes are kinds of antioxidants that we get from the protein and minerals eat as part of our daily diets. These enzymes are made in the human body, and include superoxide dismutase (SOD), glutathione reductase, glutathione peroxidase, and catalases.

* vitamins: The human body does not produce antioxidant vitamins naturally, so it is necessary to include dietary sources of them in daily consumption of food, whether it through foods or supplements. Common antioxidant vitamins include vitamins C, A, E and folic acid.

*Phytochemicals are the antioxidants that are used in naturally by plants to protect themselves from free radicals(32,33).

1.8.1 Albumin

Human serum albumin (HSA) is an abundant multifunctional nonglycosylated, negatively charged plasma protein, with ascribed ligand-binding and tranfer facilities, antioxidant functions, and enzymatic activities. its normal concentration is between 35 and 50 g/l which form up to 60% of total plasma proteins. Its half-life is 20 days in normal conditions (28,67). It is manufactured primarily in the liver and is thought to be a negative acute-phase protein. Physiologically, albumin is in charge of maintaining colloid osmotic pressure and may affect microvascular integrity and aspects of the inflammatory pathway, such as neutrophil adhesion and the activity of cell signaling moieties(68,69) Albumin habit accounts for over 50% of total plasma protein content, being present at concentrations of almost 0.6 mmol/L. HSA is a small (66 kd) globular protein includes of 585 amino acids, with few tryptophan or methionine remains but an abundance of charged remains like lysine, and aspartic acids and no prosthetic groups or carbohydrate. X-ray crystallography has shown albumin to possess a heart-shaped tertiary structure, but in solution HSA is ellipsoid. About 67% of the tertiary structure of HSA is formed of helices. The antioxidant characteristics of HSA related to its structure(70,71) show in figure(1-5).



Figure (1-5) Structure of Albumin (72)

The decrease in serum albumin may be indicates to liver failure or diseases like cirrhosis or chronic hepatitis. Hypoalbuminemia can present as part of the nephrotic syndrome, where protein get lost in the urine because of kidney damage. The decrease in albumin levels can be an indicator of chronic malnutrition or protein losing enteropathy.

an increase in the albumin level are caused by(Kidney diseases, Severe infections,Congestive cardiac failure , Severe dehydration, Hepatitis,

Malnourishment, Chronic inflammatory diseases, Cancer)(72,73).

Generally, albumin represents the major and the dominant antioxidant in plasma, a body compartment known to be exposed to continuous oxidative stress. A large percentage of total serum antioxidant characteristic can be attributed to albumin.(74,75)



Figure (1-6) :Overview of steps leading to Cys-34 oxidation and thiolation (highlighted in red).(74)

1.8.2 Creatinine

Creatinine is the cyclic anhydride of creatine which is an end product of the dissociation of phosphocreatine (76). Creatine is manufactured primarily in the liver from the methylation of glycocyamine (guanidino acetate, in the kidney are manufactured from the amino acids arginine and glycine) by S - adenosyl methionine. Then transported through blood to the other organs, muscle, and brain, where, during phosphorylation, it becomes the high-energy compound phosphocreatine.(77)

Creatinine is removed from the blood mainly by the kidneys, in the first place by glomerular filtration, but also by proximal tubular excretion. with little or no tubular reabsorption of creatinine occurs. If the clearnace in the kidney is inertial, creatinine blood levels rise.(78) So, creatinine levels in blood and urine can be used to measure the creatinine clearance (CrCl), which is associated with the glomerular filtration rate (GFR). Blood creatinine levels may also be used alone to measure the estimated GFR (eGFR) (79,80). In human subjects, Creatinine reacts non-enzymatically with •OH to shape creatol (CTL: 5-hydroxycreatinine) and demethylcreatinin (DMC) in a one to one ratio, and CTL partially dissociates to methylguanidine (MG) as shown in figure (1-7)



Figure. (1-7) Metabolic pathway of creatinine (81).

A high level of creatinine is not a direct cause of symptoms, and someone with more than-normal levels may notice no change. Symptoms associated with high creatinine level are most often caused by an primary illness that affects kidney function. The most common cause is kidney disease itself. Symptoms of kidney disease can include fatigue, itchy skin, weight loss, nausea or vomiting, loss of appetite, headaches, swelling In the hands and feet, frequent urination or painful or change in urine color. High creatinine level does not necessarily mean that the person is suffering from chronic kidney disease, but indicate the need for further tests. There is limited evidence that suggests that creatine can own antioxidant effect, which has not been tested directly. Because of oxidants such as free radicals can affect muscle fatigue and turnover of the protein, it is important to know whether creatine can neutralize radicals free and other reactive oxygen species.

Urea

Urea, also called Carbamide, the diamide of carbonic acid. Its formula is H2NCONH2.

Urea is the head nitrogenous end product of the metabolic breakdown of proteins in mammals and some fishes. The material occurs not only in the urine of mammals but also in their blood, milk, bile, and perspiration. During the collapse of the proteins are removed amino groups (NH2) of amino acids that make up proteins in part. The conversion of these amino groups to ammonia (NH3), which is toxic to the body, and therefore it must be

converted by the liver to urea. The urea then passes to the kidneys and is eventually secretion to the urine(83).

Certain exogenous factors are known affect on urea concentration which includes high protein intake, reuptake of blood proteins dehydration increased protein catabolism and after cortisol . treatment(77). Decrease in renal blood flow results in decrease in globular filtration rate this leads to decline in distal tubular flow rate which leads to increase in urea reabsorption and reduce secretion which may be the reason for high serum urea concentration (82). In available references I cannot find a path for urea as antioxidant(82,84)

Urea level is increased because of(heart disease, heart failure, or heart attack, dehydration kidney failure , bleeding in the digestive tract, stress, urinary tract problems, like obstruction shock).

Aim of Study

Investigate oxidative stress effects using 4-hydroxy-2-nenol and Induced nitric oxide synthase as markers and albumin, protein, urea, creatinine as possible effective endogenous antioxidants, in serum of hypertensive and hypertensive with kidney diseases patients and Investigate possible associations among markers and parameters of oxidative stress in hypertension and hypertension with kidney diseases.

Chapter Two


2.1 Subjects

The subjects collected for this study include 56 male patients of two of diseases namely hypertensive (28) and hypertensive with chronic kidney diseases(CKD)(28) aged between 25–60 years referred to Al-yarmouk teaching hospital during the period from October 2015 to February 2016. The diagnosis of disease was made by physician with exclusion of presence of other diseases known to be associated with elevated oxidative stress (cancer, diabetes, arthritis, or cystic fibrosis and vitamin supplements taken in the last 4 weeks).

For comparative purpose, age and sex matching group of 28 healthy male devoid of conditions like diabetes mellitus, epilepsy, psychiatric disorders or history of any drug intake are selected as control group. A systematic questionnaire for the various etiological factors of relevant medical disorders (e.g. age, blood pressure, trauma, smoking) was administered (Appendix).

2.2 Materials &Instruments

2.2.1 Chemicals and biological materials

The chemicals and biological materials used in this work are listed in table 2-1 below:

| Chemicals | Suppliers |
|----------------|----------------------------|
| Albumin kit | Biosystem (France) |
| Creatinine kit | Randox (United Kingdom) |
| 4HNE | Shanghai biological(China) |
| iNOS | Cusabio(United State |
| protein Kit | Spinreact (Spain) |
| Urea kit | Biomerieux (France) |

Table (2-1): Chemicals and biological materials used in the study

2.2.2 Instruments

| Instrument | Company | |
|------------------------------|---------------------|--|
| Centrifuge | Hettich (Germany) | |
| Deep freeze | Froilabo (France) | |
| Electronic sensitive Balance | DENVER (USA) | |
| Microcenterifuge | Eppendrof (Germany) | |
| Micropipette (Automatic) | Dragon (China) | |
| Microwave | LG (Thailand) | |
| Nano drop | Thermo (USA) | |
| Refrigerator | Samsung (Thailand) | |

2.3 Methods

2.3.1 Blood Sampling

Blood sampling was performed at 8.30 - 12.30 a.m. in the fasting state. A 10mL of venous blood were obtained. Blood was allowed to clot for at least 10-15 min. at room temperature, centrifuged for (10) min. at (4000 rpm). Serum was divided into several parts by using sterilized eppendrof tubes, some for measuring the biochemical parameters and the other part was stored at -40 °C until the time of 4-HNE and iNOS assay.

2.3.2 Measurement of Blood Pressure(BP)

Blood pressure (BP) is the pressure exerted by circulating blood upon the walls of blood vessels. When used without further specification, "blood pressure" usually refers to the arterial pressure in the systemic circulation. Blood pressure is usually expressed in terms of the systolic (maximum) pressure over diastolic (minimum) pressure and is measured in millimeters of mercury (mm Hg). It is one of the vital signs along with respiratory rate, heart rate, oxygen saturation, and body temperature. Normal resting systolic (diastolic) blood pressure in an adult is approximately 120 mm Hg (80 mm Hg), abbreviated "120/80 mm Hg. Clinic blood pressures are usually categorized into three groups; low (90/60 or lower), normal (between 90/60 and 139/89), and high (140/90 or higher).

Long term hypertension is a risk factor for many diseases, including heart disease, stroke and kidney failure. The risk of cardiovascular disease increases progressively above 115/75 mm Hg.(86)

Various factors, such as age and sex, influence a person's blood pressure and variations in it. systolic pressure tends to rise and diastolic tends to fall. In the elderly, systolic blood pressure tends to be above the normal adult range, thought to be largely because of reduced flexibility of the arteries. Also, an individual's blood pressure varies with exercise, emotional reactions, sleep, digestion and time of day (circadian rhythm).

It is measured by Mercury manometer which is The auscultatory method (from the Latin word for "listening") uses a stethoscope and a sphygmomanometer. This comprises an inflatable (Riva-Rocci) cuff placed around the upper arm at roughly the same vertical height as the heart, attached to a mercury or aneroid manometer. The mercury manometer, considered the gold standard, measures the height of a column of mercury, giving an absolute result without need for calibration and, consequently, not subject to the errors and drift of calibration which affect other methods.(87)

2.3.3Measurement of Body Mass Index (BMI)

the length was measured to the nearest 0.5 cm and weight to the nearest 0.1 Kg.Body mass index is calculated by dividing subjects weight (Kg) by their height(m2).BMIiscalculatedcalculatedas:

 $BMI = \frac{Mass (Kg)}{[Height (m)]^2}$

According to [WHO; and Fost 2011] a BMI of (<16-18.5) indicates to underweight while a person with ~ 15-16 sever underweight and <15 is very sever underweight (88), 18.5-24.9 indicates a person of normal weight . A person with a BMI of 25-29.9 is overweight , while person with BMI > 30-35 is moderately obese, > 35-40 intensity obese and > 40 is very intensity obese (89).

2.3.4 Determination of Serum 4-hydroxy-2-nonenal Level (4HNE) A-Principle:

This assay uses enzyme-linked immune sorbent assay(ELISA)based on biotin double antibody sandwich technology .To assay human 4-Hydroxynonenal was added (4HNE) to wells that are pre-coated with4-Hydroxynonenal (4HNE) monoclonal antibody and then incubated. after incubation ,add anti 4HNE antibodies labeled with biotin to united with streptavidin -HRP, which forms the immune complex. After removing unbound enzymes, then add substrate A and B. the solution will turn blue and changed to yellow with the effect of acid. the shaded of solution and the concentration of Human4-Hydroxynonenal (4HNE)are positively correlated.

B-Solutions:

Standards: (40, 80, 160, 320 and 640) ng/L

HRP-conjugate

Wash Buffer(Phosphate buffer saline)

Substrate A

Substrate B

Stop Solution

C-Procedure:

4-Hydroxy-2-nonenal measured in serum sampled were conducted according to manufacture protocol SHANGHAI YAHUA/China as the quantitative determination of endogenic human 4-HNE concentration (Test Kit No.YHB0034Hu). 50 μ L of standard or sample were added per well then 50 μ l of HRP-conjugated were added to each well (not to Blank well), Mixed well and then incubated for 1 hour at 37°C

Wells were wished with washing buffer for(30 seconds) five times. Then 50μ L of substrate A and Substrate B were added to each well, mixed well and incubated for 10 minutes at 37° C

Reaction was stopped by added 50μ L of Stop Solution. The concentration were determined by absorption at 450 nm using microplate reader.

D- Calculation:

Standard curve that was created by reducing the data using computer software and then by the program itself calculation the concentration of samples.



Figure (2-1) Standard curve for 4HNE

2.3.5 Determination of Serum Induced nitric oxide synthase (iNOS)

A-principle:

This assay employs the quantitative sandwich enzyme immunoassay technique. An antibody specific to iNOS has been pre-coated onto a microplate. Standards or samples were pipetted into the wells and any iNOS present is bound by the immobilized antibody. After removed any unbound substance, a biotinconjugated antibody specific to iNOS is added to the wells. After washing, avidin conjugated horseradish peroxidase(HRP)is added to the wells. Followed a wash to removed any unbound avidin-enzyme reagent, asubstrate solution is added to the wells And the color develops in proportion to the amount of iNOS in the sample. The color development is stopped and the intensity of the color is measured.

B- solution:

Standards: (0, 0.9, 1.8, 3.75, 7.5, 15, 30 and 60) IU/mL Biotin antibody

HRP-avidin Wash Buffer TMB Substrate contain (Tetra methyl benzidine) Stop Solution

C- Procedure:

Inducible nitric oxide synthase measured in serum sampled of hypertension patient were conducted according to manufacture protocol CUSABIO/China as the quantitative determination of endogenic human iNOS concentration (Test Kit No.CSB-E08148h). 100 μ L of Standard or Sample was added per well then 100 μ l of biotin antibody were added to each well (not to Blank well), Mixed well and then incubated for 1 hour at 37°C. Wells were washed with wash buffer two times. Then 100 μ L of HRP-avidin were added to each well, mixed well and incubated for 1 hour at 37°C. after that washed for five times. then added 90 μ L of TMB Substrate to each wells mixed well and incubated for 15-30 minutes at 37°C.

The reaction was stopped by added 50μ L of Stop Solution. The concentration were determined by absorption at 450 nm using microplate reader.

D-Calculation:

Standard curve created by reducing the data using computer software and then by the same program calculation the concentration of samples.



Figure (2-2) Standard curve for iNOS

2.3.6Determination of Albumin

A. Principle

The method is depend on the specific binding of bromocresol green (BCG), an anionic dye, and the protein at acid pH with the resulting shift in the absorption wavelength of the complex. The intensity of the color formed is proportional to the concentration of albumin in the sample.(90)

BCG + Albumin \longrightarrow BCG-albumin complex

B –Solution: Reagent 1: Succinate buffer (75mmol/L; pH 4.2) bromocresol green(BCG) 0.12 mmol/L Tensioactive 2 g/L (w/v) Albumin standard: Bovine serum albumin (5 g/dL (50g/L)).

C-Procedure

Two tubes were labeled as blank, sample and standard firstly. were added10 μ L of the serum and were added 2mL of BCG to sample tube.

In standard tube 10 μ L of standard were added, , then 2ml of BCG were added, mixed and leaved to stand for 1 minute at room temperature. Read the absorbance (A) of the samples and the standard at 630 nm against the reagent blank(BCG).

2.3.7 Determination of Serum Creatinine

A-Principle

Creatinine under alkaline solution reacts with picric acid to form a colored complex. The amount of the complex formed is directly proportional to the concentration of creatinine (92)

B- Solution:

- * Reagent1: Picric acid 25 mmol/L
- * Reagent 2: Alkaline buffer
- Phosphate buffer (300 mmol/L ; pH 12.7)
- ✤ SDS (2.0 g/L (w/v))

Creatinine standard 177µmol/L (2 mg/dL)

Working reagent: Mix 1 volume of reagent1 and 1 volume of reagent 2.

C-Procedures:

Two tubes were labeled as sample and standard. were added 100 μ l of the serum , standard to labeled tubes. then by adding 1ml of reagent 1 to each tube.

In blank tube 1ml of reagent 1 mixture was added. after that mix well and the absorbance A1 was read after 30 seconds of the standard and sample. Exactly after2 minutes absorbance A2 of standard and sample was read all against blank.

D-Calculation:

 $\Delta\;A_{sample}\;=A_2\!-A_1$

Creatinine (mmol/L) = (Δ A sample / Δ A standard) * standard concentration(2.03 mmol/L)

2.3.8 Determination of Serum Urea

A-Principle

Urease stimulate the conversion of urea to ammonia. In a modified Berthelot reaction ,the ammonium ions react with a mixture of salicylate, hypochlorite and nitroprusside to produce a blue-green (Indophenol). The absorbance of this dye is proportional to the concentration of urea in the sample: (91).

 $Urea + H_2O \xrightarrow{Urease} 2NH_3 + CO_2$ $NH_3 + salicylate + hypochloritic \xrightarrow{Nitroprusside} 2,2-dicarboxy indophenol$

B- Solution:

Reagent (1) Standared Urea 8.3 mg/dL

* Reagent (2) (Enzyme) Urease 350 KU/L

Reagent (3) Color reagent:

Phosphate buffer (50 mmol/L; pH 8)

Sodium Salisylate (62 mmol/L)

Sodium Nitroprusside (3.35 mmol/L)

EDTA(1 mmol/L)

*****Reagent (4)

Alkaline reagent Sodium Hydroxide NaOH (0.5 mmol/L)

Sodium Hypocloride NaClO (24.8 mmol)

C-Procedures:

Three tubes were labeled as blank, sample and standard firstly. were added 10 μ Ls of the serum to sample tube. then by adding 1mL of reagent 1.

In standard tube 10 μ Ls of standard were added, after that diluted with 1mL of reagent 1.In blank tube 1ml of reagent 1 was added. All tubes were mix well and incubated for 5 minute at 37 oC. Finally, were added1mL of reagent 4 to all tubes, mixed well and incubated for 5 minute at 37 oC . a Sample and standard were read at 590 nm against blank.

D-Calculation:

A Sample

Urea (mmol/L) = ----- \times Standard Concentration(8.3 mg/dL) A Standard

2.3.9Determination of Serum protein

A-Principle

In the biuret reaction, achelate is formed between the cu^{+2} ion and the peptide bonds of the protein in alkaline solution to form a coloured complex whose absorbance is measured photometrically. the intensity of the color prodused is directly proportional to the concentration of protein in the sample.(93)

 Cu^{+2} + Serum protein $\xrightarrow{ph>12}$ Copper-protein complex 25-37 $_{oC}$

B- Solution:

R1.Biuret reagent. .Cupric sulfate 6 mmol/L .Sodium-potassium-tartrate 21 mmol/L .Potassium iodide 6 mmol/L .sodium hydroxide 0.75 mol/L Protein standard. .Bovine searm albomin 7g/dl(70g/l)

C-Procedures:

Three tubes were labeled as blank, sample and standard firstly. were added 20 μ Ls of the serum to sample tube. then by adding 1mL of reagent 1. In standard tube 20 μ Ls of standard were added, after that diluted with 1mL of reagent 1.

In blank tube 1ml of reagent 1 was added. All tubes were mix well and incubated for 10minute at 37 oC. a Sample and standard were read at 540 nm against blank.

D-Calculation:

A Sample

A Sample protein $(mmol/L) = ------ \times Standard Concentration(7g/dL)$

A Standard

2.4 Statistical Analysis

All statistical analysis in studies were performed using SPSS.Descriptive analysis was used to show the mean and standard deviation of variables. The significance of difference between mean values was estimated by Student T-Test. The probability $p \le 0.05 =$ significant, p > 0.05 = non-significant. Correlation analysis was used to test the linear relationship between parameters(94).

Chapter Three

Result & Discussion

3.1 Patient Descriptive Data:

3.1.1 Distribution of Groups :

The present study included 84 volunteers divided into three groups; first group is the hypertensive volunteers patients (28 subjects), the second group is the hypertensive with kidney disease volunteers patients (28 subjects), and 28 apparently healthy individuals as control group, all shown in figure (3-1) below with their percentage



Figure (3-1): Distribution of studying group.

3.1.2 Clinical Feature of groups:

The clinical feature of the groups in the underlying study (shown in table 3-1) which include; ages , body mass index, systolic and diastolic blood pressure and duration of diseases.

Table (3-1): Clinical Feature of Studying Group (mean \pm SD):

| Characteristic | HT group | Control group | HT with CKD |
|------------------------------------|---------------------|------------------|---------------------|
| | n=28 | n=28 | disease group |
| | | | n=28 |
| Age(year) | $55.46 \pm 8.91 **$ | 23.82 ± 5.02 | 47.60±11.71** |
| | | | |
| BMI (Kg/ m^2) | 33.34 ± 4.68** | 25.18 ± 2.89 | $28.17 \pm 3.90 **$ |
| | | | |
| Systolic blood pressure(mmHg) | 14.60 ± 1.22** | 11.96 ± 0.66 | 19.03 ± 3.23** |
| pressure(mmig) | | | |
| Diastolic blood pressure (mmHg) | 9.23 ± 0.85** | 8.63 ± 0.56 | 10.83 ± 1.25** |
| | | | |
| Duration of disease(| 8.866 ± 1.48 | - | 5.133 ± 0.94 |
| years) | | | |
| | | | |

Significant **(p<0.01)

The mean age for HT was (55.46 ± 8.91) year, HT with CKD (47.60 ± 11.71) years while the mean of the control group was (23.82 ± 5.02) years. This showed significant differences in age when comparing patients groups with control group. As shown in Table (3.1).

The significant difference in BMI (p<0.01) between HT and control group reveal the positive correlation between obesity and disease, this finding was agree with (Ahmed A. *et al*) and (Shugar L *et al*) who found a significant increase in BMI in hypertensive patients (95,96). Obese patients are more ready to be hypertensive than lean patients, and weight gain is typically associated with increases in arterial pressure(98).

The significant difference in BMI between HT with CKD patients and control group may be interpret the incident with that disease (p<0.01). This result was agree with (Michael E Hall. et al))(98)(who recorded this relation as a risk factor for HT with CKD incident. For HT with CKD disease the risk increases with increasing body mass indices BMI> 26.6kg / m^2)(99).

Obesity causes renal vasodilation and glomerular hyperfiltration, which act as compensatory mechanisms to maintain sodium balance despite increased tubular reabsorption. However, these compensations, along with increased arterial pressure and metabolic abnormalities, may ultimately lead to glomerular injury and initiate a slowly developing vicious cycle that exacerbates hypertension and worsens renal injury.(100)

3.2 Oxidative Stress Markers and Parameters in HT,HT with CKD, and Control.

3.2.1 4-Hydroxy -2-nonenal (4HNE) levels :

The mean levels of serum 4HNE showed a significant increase (p <0.01) in hypertension patients group (160.22 \pm 42.63) ng/L and hypertension with kidney disease group (273.71 \pm 96.75) ng/L when compared to control group (136.46 \pm 24.55) ng/L as shown in table (3-2) and figure (3-2).

| | 4HNE ng\L | Control group |
|--|----------------|---------------|
| Patient groups | | n=28 |
| Hypertension patient n=28 | 160.22±42.63** | |
| Hypertension with kidney disease group n=28 | 273.71±96.75** | 136.46± 24.55 |

Significant with **(p<0.01)



Figure (3-2): Mean Conc. (ng/L) of Oxidative Marker 4HNE for Studied Groups.

Findings of the present study in hypertension patient is also found by (Kamelija Z. *et al*) and(Ethan J. et al)(101,102), and (Teresa Sousa *et al*)(103).

Significantly elevated (p < 0.01) in diagnosed hypertension patient and this agree with (Mariso P. *et al*) (104). And agree with(Usberti M. et al)in hypertensive with kidney disease.(105)

The accumulation of 4-HNE-adducts is very high in the intimal aorta, mainly in older patients with high atherosclerosis grade. These data were expected since oxidized LDL and lipids accumulate in the intima in the early lesions and in the lipid core of advanced atherosclerotic lesions(106). These data confirm that 4-HNE is a main marker of oxidative stress and LDL oxidation which could contribute to the evolution of the lesions via its ability to modify proteins and generate cell dysfunction. 4-HNE expression was also increased in the adventitia of the elderly, probably associated with the vasa vasorum, which are involved in the supplying of nutrients and oxygen to atherosclerotic lesions, and the development of angiogenesis in the atherosclerotic plaque . The recently found effect of 4-HNE suggests a role for this aldehyde in the development of vasa vasorum and micro capillaries in atherosclerotic plaque(107,108).

It has been demonstrated that increased intracellular generation of ROS plays an important role in chronic inflammatory responses to arterial diseases, so this causes damage to the membrane polyunsaturated fatty acids leading to the generation of 4HNE cause elevation in 4HNE in these patients(109).

3.2.2 Induced nitric oxide synthase Levels:

The (mean \pm SD) of iNOS for hypertension patients was(10.11 \pm 7.08 IU\ml), and for hypertension with kidney disease patients was (15.58 \pm 14.IU\ml) with regards to control group which is (6.42 \pm 4.93IU/ml) as revealed by table (3-3) and figure (3-3)

| Patient groups | iNOS [IU/ml] | Control group | P value |
|--------------------------|------------------|------------------|---------|
| Hypertension group | 10.11 ± 7.08 ** | | <0.01 |
| Hypertension with kidney | 15.58 ± 14.44 ** | 6.42 ± 4.93 | <0.01 |

Highly significant **(p<0.01)



Figure (3-3): iNOS Levels in Patients and Control Group

The results show a significant difference between hypertension patient and control group (p<0.01). these results were agreed with (Caroline J. Smith *et al*)(110)who found a significant difference in iNOS levels in hypertensive patient. Also (Y Álvarez *et al*)(111)found an elevation in NO synthesis might be associated with elevations of vascular resistance and, thus with hypertension. Hypertension increases iNOS expression but decreases the bioavailability and the modulation elicited by iNOS-derived NO of contractile responses in aorta as a result of the increased O₂•– production from NAD(P)H oxidase(111).

The significantly increased in iNOS in hypertensive subjects as compared to the control group which may be due to the increased generation of ROS in certain type of white blood cells which contribute in reduction bioavailability of nitric oxide and thus to the endothelial dysfunction, as some of the hypertension-induced organ damage, which occur due to hyperactivity of mechanisms that increase ROS production. There are other sources of oxidative stress in cardiovascular system that lead to heart disease and blood vessels involve NAD(P)H oxidase (multisubunit membrane complexes) and NOS as well as the mitochondrial cytochromes and hemoglobin . NOSs and hemoglobin are also principal sources of RNS, including NO which convey NO• bioactivity.(112)

iNOS produces large quantities of NO, which can then react with superoxide anion, produce highly reactive peroxynitrite, and cause oxidative damage to cellular components. The rate for the reaction of superoxide anion with NO to produce peroxynitrite is very high . It can be calculated that when NO production by eNOS is maximally stimulated and when there is significant induction of iNOS, even the relatively high level of EC-SOD in the arterial interstitium is probably insufficient to prevent peroxynitrite formation. Thus, it is likely that peroxynitrite or other nitrating species are formed in atherosclerotic lesions(113).

There was a significant correlation between iNOS and 4HNE in the study groups which related directly except control group, as shown in figures (3-4) (3-5) and (3-6).



Figure (3-4): Correlation Directly Between 4HNE and iNOS for hypertension Groups.



Figure (3-5): Correlation Directly Between 4HNE and iNOS for hypertension with kidney disease Groups.



Figure (3-6): Correlation Directly Between 4HNE and iNOS for Control Groups.

The direct correlation between these two parameters shows increasing oxidative stress in all levels in the cell. The positive correlation between 4HNE and iNOS in hypertension was also found by (Jukka S. *et al*)and(Ying Sun. *et al*) in healthy supplier by antioxidant nutrition(114,115).

3.2.3 Serum Albumin Levels:

The mean levels of total serum albumin showed a significant decrease in both patients groups when compared to control group (p<0.01) table 3-4 and figure 3-5 show results :

| Table (3-4): Values of Albumin of studied Groups (mean \pm SD): |
|---|
|---|

| | Albumin g /dL | Control group | Comparison of Significant |
|----------------|-----------------------|---------------|---------------------------|
| Characteristic | | n =28 | <i>p</i> value |
| Hypertension | $4.38 \pm 0.27 **$ | | <0.01 |
| patient N=28 | | 4.73 ±0.25 | |
| Hypertension | $3.90 \pm 0.48 ^{**}$ | | <0.01 |
| with kidney | | | |
| group N=28 | | | |

Significant**(p<0.01)

Figure (3-7): Values for Albumin [g/dL] in Patients and Control Groups .

The results of the present study showed that the levels of albumin was significantly decrease (p<0.01) in diagnosed hypertension and hypertension with kidney patients which is agreed with (Oda E) in hypertension and (Vandana M. et al) in hypertension with kidney disease.(116,117)

Albumin is the most abundant circulating protein in the plasma, exerts important antioxidant activities. The molecule acts through its multiplebinding sites and free radical-trapping properties. In physiological or pathological conditions, function associated with changes in the redox status, the albumin structure, and its beneficial antioxidant properties can be altered. In general, albumin constitutes the major plasma protein target of oxidant stress. Critically, administration of albumin to patients confers robust protection against oxidative stress and a favorable influence on redoxsignaling processes regulating inflammation. Additional studies, especially in vivo, are needed to document the modifications in albumin structure and antioxidant properties in pathologic conditions(118).

Albumin is a hepatic protein, and its plasma concentration is mainly influenced by several factors, including the rate of albumin synthesis, exogenous albumin loss, and dilution. Synthesis of albumin is affected by nutritional intake, colloid oncotic pressure variations, and liver function. Plasma albumin levels are known to be decreased in inflammatory conditions, including infection, trauma, and surgery (119).

In chronic disease states such as end-stage renal disease or dialysis, hypoalbuminaemia is common, and it may be due to renal failure. There is also evidence that severe hypoalbuminaemia promotes fluid retention and oedema through a lowering of the plasma oncotic pressure, which may in turn aggravate both cardiac and renal failure(120).

Hypoalbuminemia is a powerful predictor of mortality in patients with kidney failure. The interrelationships between inflammation, nutritional status, and outcomes in patients with kidney failure has led to speculate on the existence of a malnutrition, inflammation, atherosclerosis complex syndrome in this population. It has been suggested that the association between serum albumin levels and cardiovascular disease, in patients with kidney disease, may in part reflect the role of inflammation in inducing the malnutrition that is highly prevalent in these patients. Postulated mechanisms for the association between inflammation and malnutrition, include appetite suppression and enhanced protein catabolism by proinflammatory cytokines(117,121).

Other studies have however suggested that hypoalbuminemia is simply a reflection of the negative acute phase response, and that serum albumin levels

may be more indicative of underlying inflammation, rather than nutritional status, especially in patients with kidney disease. For example, a recent study demonstrated that although serum albumin levels ,measured as nitrogen index, were independent predictors of all-cause mortality in a cohort of patients starting dialysis(121).

The atherosclerosis has been considered as an inflammatory and immunizing disease. It is widely accepted that inflammation represents a risk factor for atrial fibrillation and for prothrombotic conditions. Different molecules behave differently during an inflammatory phase; albumin synthesis decreases, while other inflammatory globulins rise (122). In hypertension which is not inflammatory disease in basic, the decrease in albumin levels may be due to antioxidant activity more than its behavior as acute phase protein(123).

There was a negative correlation between albumin and 4HNE as shown in Figures (3-8)(3-9) and (3-10).



Figure(3-8): Correlation Between Albumin and 4HNE in HT group.



Figure(3-9): Correlation Between Albumin and 4HNE in HT with CKD group.



Figure(3-10): Correlation Between Albumin and 4HNE For Control group.

Weak negative correlation between 4HNE and albumin in patient and control group was observed in this study which agreed with (Giancarlo Aldini.*et al*) who found a negative correlation between 4HNE and Albumin(124).

In humans, albumin is the most abundant serum protein. Its antioxidant activity is essential in maintaining physiological homeostasis because it binds and transports endogenous substances; such as lipids, ascorbate and divalent cations, scavenges oxygen free radicals and preserves microvascular integrity. The albumin molecule has been demonstrated to inhibit copper ion-dependent generation of hydroxyl radicals and lipid peroxidation, thereby preventing the oxidative injury of lipoproteins(125).

There is also negative correlation between iNOS and albumin in patient and control group was observed in this study Figure(3-11) (3-12) and (3-13) which agreed with (Michael Poteser.*et al*) who found a negative correlation between 4HNE and Albumin(126).



Figure(3-11): Correlation Between Albumin and iNOS in HT group.



Figure(3-12): Correlation Between Albumin and iNOS in HT with CKD group.



Figure(3-13): Correlation Between Albumin and iNOS For Control group.

3.2.4 Serum Urea levels:

The mean levels of serum urea were significantly increased (p < 0.01) in both patients groups as compared to control group as shown in Table (3-5) in figure(3-14).

Table (3-5): Values of Urea in Studying Groups (mean±SD):

| Group | Urea(mg\dl) | Control group |
|----------------------|------------------|---------------|
| Group | | n =28 |
| Hypertension patient | 29.50 ± 7.71 N.S | 27.96±4.43 |
| n=28 | | |
| Hypertension with | 143.63 ± 47.02** | |
| kidney group n=28 | | |

NS(Non-significant) **(p<0.01)



Figure(3-14): Values for Urea [mg/dl] in Patients and Control Groups .

The present study showed high level of the urea in patients groups when compared to control group and this result agreed with (Rakhee Y. et al)(in hypertension and with (Noor ul Amin *et al*) in hypertension with kidney disease.(127,128).

Urea is the major excretory product of protein metabolism. It is formed in the liver from amino groups $(-NH_2)$ and free ammonia generated during protein catabolism(129). In large cohorts of patients with acute and chronic heart disease, an elevated urea has been shown to be a strong predictor of morbidity and mortality(130). In the heart failure and hypertension the blood flow decrease so less blood is delivered to the kidney; consequently, less urea is filtered(131). A reduction in renal blood flow leads to a decrease of glomular filtration, this is lead to a decrease distal tubular flow rate which lead to

increase of urea reabsorption and decreased secretion which may be the reason for elevated serum urea concentration.(132)

There is a positive correlation between 4HNE and urea in HT patient group was observed in this study Figure(3-15) but negative in groups HT with CKD and control Figure (3-16) and (3-17)which agreed with (Lisa M. Walker.*et al*) who found a positive correlation between 4HNE and urea(133).



Figure(3-15): Correlation Between Urea and 4HNE in HT patients.



Figure(3-16): Correlation Between Urea and 4HNE in HT with CKD patients.



Figure(3-17): Correlation Between Urea and 4HNE For Control group.

There is a positive correlation between iNOS and urea in patient and control group was observed in this study Figure(3-18) (3-19) and (3-20) which agreed with (S. R. Meenakshi.*et al*) who found a positive correlation between iNOS and urea(134).









Figure(3-19): Correlation Between Urea and iNOS in HT with CKD patients.

Figure(3-20): Correlation Between Urea and iNOS For Control group.

3.2.5 Serum Creatinine Level:

The mean levels of serum creatinine of both patients groups compared to control group are shown in table (3-6)in figure(3-21).

Table (3-6): Values of Creatinine in Studying Groups (mean±SD):

| Group | Creatinine mg/dl | Control group |
|----------------------|-----------------------|---------------|
| | | n =28 |
| Hypertension patient | $0.853 \pm 0.203 N.S$ | |
| n=28 | | 0.75 ± 0.09 |
| Hypertension with | 8.01 ± 5.88 ** | |
| kidney group n=28 | | |

NS(Non-significant) **(p<0.01)



Figure(3-21): Values for Creatinine [mg/dl] in Patients and Control Groups .

The results showed a significant in Creatinine levels in patients groups when compared to control group and this agree with(Isra'a H.) (135).

There were significant differences between patients and control in creatinine concentration This elevation of serum creatinine concentration may be attributed to the decrease in creatinine clearance due to the decrease in the GFR (136), Creatinine produced as a waste product of muscle creatine, about 1 % of the total muscle creatine pool is converted daily creatinine through the spontaneous, nonenzymatic loss of water. Since it is released into the blood at a constant rate, and since its excretion is closely matched to glomerular filtration rate(137). The elevation of serum creatinine concentration may be attributed to the decrease in creatinine clearance due to the decrease in the GFR .



Figure(3-22): Correlation Between Creatinine and 4HNE in HT patients .



Figure(3-23): Correlation Between Creatinine and 4HNE in HT with CKD patients .



Figure(3-24): Correlation Between Creatinine and 4HNE For Control group .

There is a negative correlation between 4HNE and creatinine in patient and control group was observed in this study which agreed with (Hiroyuki Kobori.*et al*) who found a negative correlation between 4HNE and creatinine(138).

Creatinine, a by-product of muscle energy metabolism that, similar to urea, is filtered from the blood by the kidneys and excreted into the urine Elevated serum creatinine might be to direct effect of and its related complications hypertension on renal function. Creatinine test also provide a base line measurement of kidney function that can be used as monitoring for side effects of certain antihypertensive drugs on kidney function(139).

Elevation of blood creatinine is a more sensitive indicator of impaired kidney . creatinine is only minimally altered during transit through the tubule, the excretion rate approximately equals the GFR times the plasma concentration. Thus, each time the GFR decreases to one-half its starting level, the plasma concentration doubles. This estimate breaks down a little at the very lowest GFR levels where tubular secretion of creatinine plays a larger role(140).



Figure(3-25): Correlation Between Creatinine and iNOS in HT patients .


Figure(3-26): Correlation Between Creatinine and iNOS in HT with CKD patients .



Figure(3-27): Correlation Between Creatinine and iNOS For Control group . There is also negative correlation between iNOS and creatinine in patient and control group was observed in this study which agreed with (Kwon Moo P.*et al*) who found a negative correlation between iNOS and creatinine(141).

3.2.6 Total Serum protein Level(TSP):

The mean levels of serum Total protein of both patients groups compared to control group are shown in table (3-7).

| Groups | Total serum protein(g\dl) | Control group n =28 |
|--------------------------|------------------------------|------------------------|
| Hypertension patient | 7.24 ± 0.55 N.S | 7.80±0.49 |
| Hypertension with kidney | 6.94 ± 1.06 ** | |
| group n=28 | | |

Table (3-7): Values of Total serum protein in Studying Groups (mean±SD):

NS(Non-significant) **(p<0.01)

The results showed a significant in TSP levels in patients groups when compared to control group and this agree with(Koenig W.et al) and(Marisol Peña S. et al) (142,143).

There is a positive correlation between 4HNE and Protein in patients group (p-value 0.01) and negative correlation in control group was observed in this study and this agreed with(Carlos K. et al) (144) show in Figure(3-28) (3-29) and (3-30).



Figure(3-28): Correlation Between Protein and 4HNE in HT patients .



Figure(3-29): Correlation Between Protein and 4HNE in HT with CKD patients .



Figure(3-30): Correlation Between Protein and For Control group .

There is a positive correlation between iNOS and Protein in patient and control group was observed in this study and this agreed with (Caroline J. Smith. et al) (110) show in Figure(3-31) (3-32) and (3-33).

Antioxidant therapy ameliorated the CRF-induced hypertension, improved vascular tissue NO production, lowered tissue nitrotyrosine burden, and reversed down regulations of NOS isoforms. In contrast, antioxidant therapy had no effects in the controls. CRF is associated with oxidative stress which promotes NO inactivation by ROS leading to functional NO deficiency, hypertension, and widespread accumulation of protein nitration products. Amelioration of oxidative stress by high-dose vitamin E enhances NO availability, improves hypertension, lowers protein nitration products, and increases NOS expression and vascular NO production in CRF(145,146).





Figure(3-32): Correlation Between protein and iNOS in HT with CKD patients.



Figure(3-33): Correlation Between protein and iNOS Control group.

Several observational studies did not find an association between total serum protein and 4HNE,INOS. It has been suggested that the relation between total serum protein ,INOS and 4HNE may vary across sex, age

| Parameters correlated in HT | Correlation coefficient (r) | Parameters correlated in HT with CKD | Correlation coefficient (r) |
|--|---|--|---------------------------------|
| 4-hydroxy-2-nenol & Urea | 0.08 NS | 4-hydroxy-2-nenol & Urea | -0.12 * |
| 4-hydroxy-2-nenol & Creatinine | -0.06 NS | 4-hydroxy-2-nenol & Creatinine | -0.05 NS |
| 4-hydroxy-2-nenol & Albumin | -0.02 NS | 4-hydroxy-2-nenol & Albumin | -0.06 NS |
| 4-hydroxy-2-nenol & Total serum protein | 0.08 NS | 4-hydroxy-2-nenol & Total serum protein | 0.08 NS |
| Induced Nitric oxide & Urea | -0.13 * | Induced Nitric oxide & Urea | -0.04 NS |
| Induced Nitric oxide & Creatinine | -0.32 * | Induced Nitric oxide & Creatinine | -0.03 NS |
| Induced Nitric oxide & Albumin | -0.05 NS | Induced Nitric oxide & Albumin | -0.06 NS |
| Induced Nitric oxide & Total serum protein | 0.12* | Induced Nitric oxide & Total serum protein | 0.09 NS |

Table (3-34)Correlation coefficient between parameters in patients group

* (P<0.05), NS: Non-significant.





Recommendation

Conclusions

- 1. Oxidative stress in its markers and parameters is the main chemical manifestation of hypertension and cardiovascular diseases and related diseases in patients of this study. This conclusion was obvious in high significant difference between serum 4HNE, iNOS and albumin in patients of both HT and HT with CKD. urea, creatinine, protein field in achieve this results.
- 2. The association between albumine and 4Hydroxy-2nonenal(4HNE) leads to conclude that low serum levels of albumine is very risky due to high probability of its oxidation which is exacerbate the diseases of underlying study. Also the association between 4HNE and iNOS leads to conclude the deep effect of cells from membrane to the nucleus by oxidative species.
- 3. Chronic renal failure(CRF) results in down regulation of renal and cardiovascular NOS isoform expressions and depressed NO production capacity. Acquired NO deficiency in CRF is compounded by ROS-mediated oxidation/inactivation of NO. These events contribute to the pathogenesis of CRF associated hypertension and the formation of protein nitration products. And we concluded from the above finding that there is adverse effect of the hypertension on renal function

future work

Future work:

1. study the BMPR2 gene in hypertension patients to define the type of disease in each patients

2. Study the effect of pollution, bombing, modern life style on the incidence of the disease

3. stud the effect of antioxidant supplement on the oxidative stress parameters in HT patients

4. study the effect of exercising on the oxidative stress statute in HT patients

References

[1] Caroline M.,(2013), Introduction to Epidemiology: Distribution and Determinants of Disease, J Clin Hypertens (Greenwich)21(11),302-303.

[2] Giuseppe M., Fagard R and Narkiewicz K., et al., (2013), 2013 Practice guidelines for the management of arterial hypertension of the European Society of Hypertension (ESH) and the European Society of Cardiology (ESC): ESH/ESC Task Force for the Management of Arterial Hypertension, J of Hypertension , 31(10), 1925-1938.

[3] James, PA., Oparil, S., Carter, BL., Cushman, WC., Dennison-Himmelfarb, C., Handler, J., Lackland, DT.,and Lefevre, ML., et al. (2013), 2014 Evidence-Based Guideline for the Management of High Blood Pressure in Adults: Report From the Panel Members Appointed to the Eighth Joint National Committee (JNC 8), JAMA 311 (5), 507–520.

- [4] Thomas D., (2014), Hypertension 101: the place to start, J Clinical Hypertension, 16(1), 4-5.
- [5] Michael J.M., (2011), Small Artery Remodelling in Hypertension, Basic Clinical of Pharmacology and Toxicology, 110, 49-55.
- [6] Majid E., Rasool C., Mahmood K., et al ., (2014), Avicenna's doctrine about arterial hypertension, 12(1),157-162.

 [7] Ehret GB., Munroe PB.,and Rice KM., et al. (2011), Genetic variants in novel pathways influence blood pressure and cardiovascular disease risk, US National Library of Medicine National Institutes of Health, 478 (7367), 103– 109. [8] Kato, Norihiro Loh., Marie Takeuchi., Fumihiko Verweij., et al., (2015), Trans-ancestry genome-wide association study identifies 12 genetic loci influencing blood pressure and implicates a role for DNA methylation, US National Library of Medicine, 47 (11), 1282–1293.

[9]Michael J.M., and Charles D A Wolfe., (2011). Lay perspectives on hypertension and drug adherence: systematic review of qualitative research, US National Library of Medicine National Institutes of Health, 345.

[10] Meng, L., Chen, D., Yang, Y., Zheng, Y., and Hui, R., (2012), Depression increases the risk of hypertension incidence: a meta-analysis of prospective cohort studies, Journal of Hypertension , 30 (5), 842–51.

[11] Vaidya A., and Forman JP Forman., (2010), Vitamin D and hypertension: current evidence and future directions, US National Library of Medicine National Institutes of Health, 56 (5),774–9.

[12] O'Brien, Eoin., Beevers, D. G., and Lip, Gregory Y. H., (2007), ABC of hypertension, London: BMJ Books.

[13] Obeagu Emmanuel Ifeanyi., Omeh Yusuf Ndukaku., and Eze-Ifeanyi Gloria Ndidiamaka., (2014), Some Biochemical and Haematological Effects of Hypertention Among Pregnant Women of Ikwano L.G.A., Abia State, Nigeria Research Journal of Pharmaceutical, Biological and Chemical Sciences, 5(2),837.

[14] Grossman E., and Messerli FH Messerli., (January 2012), Drug-induced
Hypertension: An Unappreciated Cause of Secondary Hypertensioz, Am. J.
Med. 125 (1), 14–22.

[15] Jieying Jiang., Mengling Liu., Faruque Parvez., and et al., (2015), Association between Arsenic Exposure from Drinking Water and Longitudinal Change in Blood Pressure among HEALS Cohort Participants, Environ Health Perspectives ,123 (8)122-126.
[16] Lalita N. Abhyankar., Miranda R. Jones., Eliseo Guallar., and Ana

Navas-Acien.,(2012),Arsenic exposure and hypertension: a systematic review, Environmental Health Perspectives ,120 (4),494–500.

[17] Mendis S., Puska P., Norrving B.,(2011), Global Atlas on Cardiovascular Disease Prevention and Control, World Health Organization (in collaboration with the World Heart Federation and World Stroke Organization), Geneva.

[18] Sarafidis PA., and Bakris GL.,(2008),. State of hypertension management in the United States: confluence of risk factors and the prevalence of resistant hypertension, J Clin Hypertens (Greenwich),10(2):130–139.

[19] Wen CP., Cheng TY., and Tsai MK., et al.,(2008), All-cause mortality attributable to chronic kidney disease: a prospective cohort study based on 462,293 adults in Taiwan. Lancet,371(9631),2173–2182.

[20] A Martínez-Castelao JL., and Górriz; J Bover., et al., (2014), Consensus document for the detection and management of chronic kidney disease, Nefrologia, 34 (2), 243–62.

- [21] National Kidney and Urologic Diseases(2007), Choosing a treatment that's right for you.
- [22] Marx JA., et al.(2014), Rosen's Emergency Medicine: Concepts and Clinical Practice. 8th ed. Philadelphia, Pa.: Saunders Elsevier.

[23] Upadhyay A., Earley A., Haynes SM., and Uhlig K.,(2011), Systematic review: blood pressure target in chronic kidney disease and proteinuria as an effect modifier, Ann Intern Med,154,541-548.

[24] Abuja P. M., and Albertini, R., (2001), Methods for monitoringoxidative stress, lipid peroxidation and oxidation resistanceof lipoproteins, Clin Chim Acta, 306,1–17

[25] Holzerová E., and Prokisch H., (2015), Mitochondria: Much ado about nothing? How dangerous is reactive oxygen species production?, Int J Biochemistry and Cell Biology, 21, 5 pages.

[26] Crohns M., (2010), Antioxidants, Cytokines and Markers of Oxidative Stress in Lung Cancer Associations with adverse events, response and survival, Tampere, 7, 21-25.

[27] Mayer B., and Hemmens B.,(1997), Biosynthesis and action of nitric oxide in mammalian cells, Trends Biochem Sci, ,22,477–481.

[28] Kalyanaraman B., (2013), Teaching the basics of redox biology to medical and graduate students: Oxidants, antioxidants and disease mechanisms, J of Redox Biology, 1, 244-257.

[29] Palmer RM., Ferrige AG., and Moncada S.,(1987), Nitric oxide release accounts for the biological activity of endothelium-derived relaxing factor, Nature, 327,524–526.

[30] José A., (2013), Oxidative Stress and Chronic Degenerative Diseases - a Janeza Trdine, 34-35. Role for Antioxidants, 51, 978-953.

[31] Devasagayam T., Tilak JC., Boloor KK., Sane Ketaki S., Ghaskadbi Saroj S., and Lele RD., (2004), Free Radicals and Antioxidants in Human

Health: Current Status and Future Prospects, Journal of Association of Physicians of India (JAPI), 52, 796.

[32] Sosa Torres ME., Saucedo-Vázquez JP., and Kroneck PM., (2015), Chapter 1, Section 3 The dark side of dioxygen. In Kroneck PM, Torres ME. Sustaining Life on Planet Earth: Metalloenzymes Mastering Dioxygen and Other Chewy Gases. Metal Ions in Life Sciences**15**. Springer. pp. 1–12.

[33] Holzerová E., Prokisch H., (2015), Mitochondria: Much ado about nothing? How dangerous is reactive oxygen species production?, Int J Biochemistry and Cell Biology, 21, 5 pages.

- [34] Valenza M., Leoni V., Karasinska J.M., (2010), Cholesterol defect is marked across multiple rodent models of Huntington's disease and is manifest in astrocytes, J. Neurosci, 30, 10844-10850.
- [35] Stamler JS., Singel DJ., and Loscalzo J., (1992), Biochemistry of nitric oxide and its redox-activated forms, Science 258,1898–1902.
- [36] Zimniak P.,(2007), Relationship of electrophilic stress to aging., Free Radical Biology and Medicine, 51(6), 1087-1105.
- [37] José A.,(2013),Oxidative Stress and Chronic Degenerative Diseases-a Role for Antioxidants, Janeza Trdine, 9,34-35.

[38] Grant S.S., Kauffman B., Chand N., Hasely N., and Hung D.T., (2012), Eradication of bacterial persisters with antibiotic-generated hydroxyl radicals, Proceedings of the National Academy of Science of USA, 109(30), 12147-12152.

[39]Shiv K., (2011), Free Radicals and Antioxidants: Human and Food System, Advances in Applied Science Research, 2, 129-135.

- [40] Noori S., (2012), An Overview of Oxidative Stress and Antioxidant Defensive System, Open Access Scientific Reports, 1, 1-8.
- [41] Kunwar A., and Priyadarsini K., (2012), Free radicals, oxidative stress and importance of antioxidants in human health, J of Medical and Allied Sciences, 1(2), 53-60.

[42] Chandra Kala., Syed Salman Ali., Abid Mohd., Sweety Rajpoot., and Najam Ali Khan., (2015),Protection Against FCA Induced Oxidative Stress Induced DNA Damage as a Model of Arthritis and In vitro Antiarthritic Potential of Costus speciosus Rhizome Extract, International Journal of Pharmacognosy and Phytochemical Research, 7 (2), 383–389.

- [43] Plasma antioxidant capacity is reduced in Asperger syndrome,(2012), J Psychiatr Res 46, 394–401.
- [44] Ramalingam M., and Kim SJ., (2012), Reactive oxygen/nitrogen species and their functional correlations in neurodegenerative diseases, Journal of Neural Transmission ,119 (8), 891–910.
- [45] Nijs J., Meeus M., and De Meirleir K .,(2006), Chronic musculoskeletal pain in chronic fatigue syndrome: recent developments and therapeutic implications, Man Ther 11 (3), 187–91.

[46] Suvorava T., Kojda G., (2009), Reactive oxygen species as cardiovascular mediators: Lessons from endothelial-specifi c protein, Biochemical et Biophysical Acta, 1787, 802-810.

[47] N. Bashan., J. Kovsan., I. Kachko., H. Ovadia., and A. Rudich.,(2009), Positive and negative regulation of insulin signaling by reactive oxygen and nitrogen species, Physiological Reviews, 89(1), 27–71. [48] Ahmad A., Singhal U., Mohd M., Islam N., and Rivisi I., (2013), The Role of the Endogenous Antioxidant Enzymes and Malondialdehyde in Essential Hypertension, J Clinical Diagnostic Research, 7, 987-990.

[49] Steven D., (2014), The Cooperative Roles of Inflammation and Oxidative Stress in the Pathogenesis of Hypertension, Antioxidant and Redox Signal, 20(1), 102-120.

[50] Rodrigo R., Jaime G., and Paoletto F., (2011), The role of oxidative stress in the pathophysiology of hypertension, The Japanese Society of Hypertension, 34, 431-440.

[51] Taniyama Y., and Griendling K., (2003), Reactive Oxygen Species in the Vasculature : Molecular and Cellular Mechanisms, Hypertension., 42, 1174-1181.

[52] Versari D., Daghini E., Virdis A., Lorenzo G., and Taddei S., (2009), Endothelium-dependent contractions and endothelial dysfunction in human hypertension, British J of Pharmacology, 157(4), 527-536.

[53] Hirata Y., and Satonaka H., (2000), Hypertension and Oxidative Stress,J of the Japan Medical Association , 124 (11), 1575-1579.

[54] Vogiatzi G., Tousoulis D., and Stefanadis C., (2009), The Role of Oxidative Stress in Atherosclerosis, Hellenic J Cardiology, 50(5), 402-409.

[55] Biomarkers Definitions Working Group, (2001), Biomarkers Definitions working group, Biomarkers and surrogate endpoints: preferred definitions and conceptual framework. Clinical and Pharmacology Ther, 69(3), 69-89.

[56] http:/www.bii.a-star.edu.sg.

[57]Francisco J. Schopfer., Chiara Cipollina.,andBruce A.,(2011) Freeman ChemicalReviews, 111 (10),5997-6021.

[58]ShardaP. Singh., Maciej Niemczyk., Deepti Saini., Yogesh C. Awasthi.,Ludwika Zimniak and PiotrZimniak., (2008), Biochemistry, 47 (12), 3900-3911.

[59] K.L. Calkins., R.S. Venick., and S.U. Devaskar., (2014), Complications associated with parenteral nutrition in the neonate Clin, Perinatol, 41, 331–345.

[60] William Black., Ying Chen., Akiko Matsumoto., David C. Thompson., Natalie Lassen ., Aglaia Pappa., andVasilis Vasiliou., (2012), Free Radical Biology and Medicine, Volume 52, Issue 9, 1 Pages 1937-1941.

[61] Kenneth M. Humphries., and Luke I. Szweda.,(1998), Selective Inactivation of α-Ketoglutarate Dehydrogenase and Pyruvate Dehydrogenase:
Reaction of Lipoic Acid with 4-Hydroxy-2-nonenal, American Chemical Society, 37 (45), 15835–15841.

- [62] Delker SL., Xue F., Li H., Jamal J., Silverman RB., and Poulos TL.,
- (2010), Role of zinc in isoform-selective inhibitor binding to neuronal nitric oxide synthase, Biochemistry, 49 (51), 10803–10810.
- [63] Knowles RG, Moncada S (1994), Nitric oxide synthases in mammals, Biochem. J., 298 (2), 249–58.

[64] Al-Azemi M., Refaat B., Amer S., Ola B., Chapman N., and Ledger W.,
(2010), The expression of inducible nitric oxide synthase in the human fallopian tube during the menstrual cycle and in ectopic pregnancy, Fertil. Steril, 94 (3), 833–840.

- [65] Liu Y., and Feng Q., (2012), NOing the heart: role of nitric oxide synthase-3 in heart development, Differentiation, 84 (1), 54–61.
- [66] Mark Percival.,(1998), Antioxidants, Clinical Nutrition Insights, 3, 01-04.
- [67] Kunwar A., Priyadarsini K., (2012), Free radicals, oxidative stress and importance of antioxidants in human health, J of Medical and Allied Sciences, 1(2), 53-60.

[68] Quinlan G.J., Martin G.S., Evans T.W. (2005), Albumin: Biochemical Properties and Therapeutic Potential., Hepatology, 41, 1211–1219.

- [69] Fanali G., Di Masi A., Trezza V., Marino M., Fasano M., (2012), Human serum albumin: from bench to bedside, Mol Aspects Med., 33, 209–290.
- [70] Peters T.,(1996), All About Albumin: Biochemistry, Genetics, and Medical Applications, San Diego, CA: Academic Press.
- [71] Colombo G., Clerici M., Giustarini D., Rossi R., Milzani A., Dalle-Donne I., (2012), Redox albuminomics: oxidized albumin in human diseases. Antioxid Redox Signal, 17,1515-1527.

[72] Marjolaine R., Philippe R., Nihar R, Evelyne T., and Emmanuel B.,(2008), Mini review The antioxidant properties of serum albumin, Federation of European Biochemical Societies, 582, 1783–1787.

[73] Durga P., Shabana S., and Shalini G., (2014), Assessment of Copper, Ceruloplasmin, Total Proteins and Albumin in Gestational Hypertension, Dental and Medical Scie. J., 13, 101-105. [74] Taverna M., Anne L., Jean P., and Bertrand G., (2013), Specific antioxidant properties of human serum albumin, Annals of Intensive Care, 3(4), 7 pages.

[75] Bourdon E., and Blache D., (2001), The importance of proteins in defense against oxidation, Antioxid Redox Signal,3(2),293–311.

 [76] George G.S., Wakasi M.E., and Egoro E., (2014), Creatinine and Urea
 Levels as Critical Markers in End-Stage Renal Failure, RRJMHS, 3(1), 41-44.

[77] Allen PJ., (2012), Creatine metabolism and psychiatric disorders : Does creatine supplementation have therapeutic value?, Neurosci Biobehav Rev, 36

(5), 1442–1462.

[78] Lam A., (2010), Outpatient management of chronic kidney disease.Proteinimia, anemia, are bone disease as therapeutic targets, Dis Mon., 56(4), 215-232.

[79]Shemesh O., Golbetz H., Kriss JP., and Myers BD., (1985), Limitations of creatinine as a filtration marker in glomerulopathic patients, Kidney Int., 28 (5), 830–8.

[80] Gross JL., de Azevedo MJ., Silveiro SP., Canani LH., Caramori ML., and Zelmanovitz T.,(2005), Diabetic nephropathy: diagnosis, prevention, and treatment, Diabetes Care, 28 (1), 164–76.

[81] Kazuharu I., and Takako Y., (2011), Creatinine and HMH (5-hydroxy-1methylhydantoin, NZ-419) as intrinsic hydroxyl radical scavengers Drug Discoveries Therapeutics, 5(4), 162-175. [82]Harvey R., and Ferrier D., (2011), Lippincott's Illustrated Reviews Biochemistry, 5th ed., Walter Kluwer, Philadelphia.

[83] Hamdani I., (2010), Estimation of Serum Uric Acid, Urea and Creatinine in Essential Hypertensive Patients, Tikrit Medical J., 16(1), 152-158.

[84]Carl A., Ashwood E., Bruns D, (2010), Textbook Of Clinical Chemistryand Molecular Diagnostics, 5th ed, Elsevier, USA.

[85]Koolman J., and Roehm K.H., (2005), Color Atlas of Biochemistry, 2nd ed. Thieme, New York, 325.

[86] Appel LJ., Brands MW., Daniels SR., Karanja N., Elmer PJ., and Sacks FM .,(2006), Dietary approaches to prevent and treat hypertension: a scientific statement from the American Heart Association, Hypertension. 47 (2),296–308.

[87] Thomas G. Pickering., DPhil, John E. Hall., Lawrence J. Appel., Bonita
E. Falkner., and John Graves., et al ., (2005), Recommendations for Blood
Pressure Measurement in Humans and Experimental Animals, Hypertension, 45(5),142-161.

[88]World Health Organization WHO (2011), Implementing National Diabetes programs".Geneva, Switzerland, WHO Technical Report Series.

[89] Fost L., Hane L.J., and Vestergaard P., (2005), Overweight and obesity as risk factors for atrial fibrillation or flutter: the Danish Diet, Cancer, and

Health Study, Am. J.Med., 118, 489-495.

[90] Doumas B.T., Watson W.A., and Biggas H.G., (1971), Albumin standards and the measurement of serum albumin with bromcresol green,

Clinical Chimemistry Acta., 31(1), 87-96.

[91] Tabacco A., Meiattini F., Moda E., and Tarli P., (1979), Simplified enzymic/colorimetric serum, Clin.Chem., 25, 2-336.

[92] Nakamura K., Ienaga K., Nakano K., Nakai M., Nakamura Y., Hasegawa G., Sawada M., Kondo M., Mori H., and Kanatsuna T., (1994), Creatol, a creatinine metabolite, as a useful determinant of renal function, Nephron, 66,140-146.

[93]Tietz N.W. Fundamentals of clinical chemistry. p.940.W.B.saunders Co. philadelphia, PA.(1987).

[94]Cary N.C., (2012), Statistical Analysis System, User's Guide. Statistical.Version9.1thed.SAS.Inst.Inc..USA.

[95] Ahmad A., Singhal U., Mohd M., Islam N., and Rivisi I., (2013), The Role of the Endogenous Antioxidant Enzymes and Malondialdehyde in Essential Hypertension, J Clinical Diagnostic Research, 7, 987-990.

[96] Shuger S., Xuemei S., Timothy S., Rebecca A., and Meriwether S.,
(2008), Body Mass Index as a Predictor of Hypertension Incidence Among Initially Healthy Normotensive Women, American J of Hypertension, 21(6), 613-619.

[97] Lavie C.J., Milani R.V., and Ventura H.O., (2009), Obesity and Cardiovascular Disease Risk Factor, Paradox, and Impact of Weight Loss, J American College of Cardiology, 53 (21), 1926-1932.

[98] Michael E Hall., Jussara M do Carmo., Alexandre A da Silva., Luis A Juncos., Zhen Wang and John E Hall.,(2014), Obesity, hypertension, and chronic kidney disease, Int J Nephrol Renovasc Dis, 7,75–88.

[99] Foster MC., Hwang SJ., Larson MG., et al.,(2008) Overweight, obesity, and the development of stage 3 CKD: the Framingham Heart Study, Am J Kidney Dis, 52(1),39–48.

[100] Berthoux F., Mariat C., and Maillard N.,(2013), Overweight/obesity revisited as a predictive risk factor in primary IgA nephropathy, Nephrol Dial Transplant,(28 Suppl 4),iv160–iv166.

[101] Kamelija Zarkovic . , Pauline Larroque-Cardoso ., Mélanie Pucelle . , Robert Salvayre ., Georg Waeg . , Anne Nègre-Salvayre . ,and Neven Zarkovic.,(2015), Elastin aging and lipid oxidation products in human aorta, Redox Biology,4, 109–117.

[102] Ethan J. Anderson., Lalage A. Katunga., and Monte S. Willis., (2013),Mitochondria as a Source and Target of Lipid Peroxidation Products in Healthy and Diseased Heart, Clin Exp Pharmacol Physiol, 39(2),1440-1681.

[103] Sousa, T., Oliveira, S., Afonso, J., Morato, M., Patinha, D., Fraga, S., Carvalho, F., and AlbinoTeixeira,(2012) A., Role of H(2) o(2) in Hypertension. Renin-Angiotensin System Activation and Renal Medullary Disfunction Caused by Angiotensin II. Br J Pharmacol, 166(8),2386-401.

[104] Marisol Peña-Sánchez., Sergio González-García., Gretel Riverón-Forment., Otman Fernández-Concepción., Olivia Martínez-Bonne., Gisselle Lemus-Molina., Isabel Fernández-Almirall., María de la Caridad Menéndez-Sainz., Alina González-Quevedo.,and Janis T. Eells.,(2014), Association of Serum Antioxidant Enzymes and Nervous Tissue Markers in Hypertensive Patients, World Journal of Cardiovascular Diseases,4,160-168. [105] Usberti M., Gerardi GM., Gazzotti RM., Benedini S., Archetti S.,
Sugherini L., Valentini M., Tira P., Bufano G., Albertini A., and Di Lorenzo D., (2002), Oxidative stress and cardiovascular disease in dialyzed patients,
Nephron,91(1),25-3.

[106] Negre-Salvayre A., Auge N., and Ayala V., (2010), Pathological aspects of lipid peroxidation, Free Radic, 44(10), 1125–1171.

[107] Subbotin V.M.,(2012), Neovascularization of coronary tunica intima (DIT) is the cause of coronary atherosclerosis. Lipoproteins invade coronary intima via neovascularization from adventitial vasa vasorum, but not from the arterial lumen: a hypothesis, Theor. Biol. Med., 9,11.

[108] Mulligan-Kehoe M.J., and Simons M.,(2014), Vasa vasorum in normal and diseased arteries, Circulation,129(24),2557–2566.
[109] Antonio Ayala., Mario F. Muñoz., and Sandro Argüelles.,(2014), Lipid Peroxidation: Production, Metabolism, and Signaling Mechanisms of Malondialdehyde and 4-Hydroxy-2-Nonenal, Oxidative Medicine and Cellular Longevity, 31 pages.

[110] Caroline J. Smith., Lakshmi Santhanam., Rebecca S. Bruning., Anna Stanhewicz., Dan E. Berkowitz., and Lacy A. Holowatz., (2011), Upregulation of Inducible Nitric Oxide Synthase Contributes to Attenuated Cutaneous Vasodilation in Essential Hypertensive Humans, 58,935-942.

[111] Y Álvarez., A M Briones., R Hernanz., J V Pérez-Girón., M J Alonso., and M Salaices.,(2009), Role of NADPH oxidase and iNOS in vasoconstrictor responses of vessels from hypertensive and normotensive rats,

British Journal of Pharmacology, 153, Issue 5, 926–935.

[112] Marian Valko ., Dieter Leibfritz ., Jan Moncol a., Mark T.D. Cronin c., Milan Mazur a., and Joshua Telser.,(2007), Free radicals and antioxidants in normal physiological functions and human disease, The International Journal of Biochemistry & Cell Biology, 39, 44–84.

[113] Rubbo H., Parthasarathy S., Barnes S., Kirk M., Kalyaranaraman B., and Freeman B., (1995), Nitric oxide inhibition of lipoxygenase-dependent liposome and lowdensity lipoprotein oxidation: termination of radical chain propagation reactions and formation of nitrogen-containing oxidized lipid derivatives, Arch Biochem Biophys, 324, 15–25.

[114] Jukka S. Luoma., Pontus Strålin., Stefan L. Marklund., Timo P. Hiltunen., Terttu Sa¨rkioja.,and Seppo Yla¨-Herttuala.,(1998), Expression of Extracellular SOD and iNOS in Macrophages and Smooth Muscle Cells in Human and Rabbit Atherosclerotic Lesion, Arterioscler Thromb Vasc Biol,18,157-167.

[115] Ying Sun., Oscar A. Carretero., Jiang Xu., Nour-Eddine Rhaleb., James J. Yang., Patrick J. Pagano., and Xiao-Ping Yang., (2009), Deletion of Inducible Nitric Oxide Synthase Provides Cardioprotection in Mice With 2-Kidney, 1-Clip Hypertension, American Heart Association, Inc, 53, 49-56.

[116] Oda E.,(2012), Decreased serum albumin predicts hypertension in a Japanese health screening population ,intern Med, 53(7), 655-660.

[117] Vandana Menon., T.O.M. Greene., Xuelei Wang., Arema A.Pereira., Santica M. Marcovina., Gerald J. Beck., John W. Kusek., Alan J. Collins., Andrew S. Levey.,and Mark J. Sarnak.,(2005), C-reactive protein and albumin as predictors of all-cause and cardiovascular mortality inchronic kidney disease, Kidney International, 68, 766–772. [118] Marjolaine Roche., Philippe Rondeau., Nihar Ranjan Singh., Evelyne Tarnus ., and Emmanuel Bourdon.,(2008), The antioxidant properties of serum albumin, FEBS, 582,1783–1787.

[119] Liu M., Chan C. P., Yan BP., Zhang Q., Lam Y., Li R.J., Sanderson J.E., Coats A.J., Sun J.P., Yip G.W., Yu C.M., (2012), Albumin levels predict survival in patients with heart failure and preserved ejection fraction , Eurpain J Heart Failure, 14(1), 39-44.

 [120] Filippatos GS., Desai RV., Ahmed MI, Fonarow GC., Love TE., Aban
 IB., Iskandrian AE., Konstam MA.,and AhmedA.,(2011),Hypoalbuminaemia and incident heart failure in older adults, Eur J Heart Fail ,13,1078–1086.

[121] B.A. Cooper., E.L. Penne., and L.H. Bartlett.,(2004), Protein malnutrition and hypoalbuminemia as predictors of vascular events and mortality in ESRD Am, J Kidney Dis, 43, 61–66.

[122] Zecca B., Mandelli C., Maino A., Casiraghi C., Bolla G., Consonni D., Santalucia P. and Torgano G., (2014), A bioclinical pattern for the early diagnosis of cardioembolic stroke. Emerg Med Int., 242171.

[123] Yasmeen Muhialdeen H., Alaa H. Jawad and Wisam Kadhum H. Al-Hashemi G., (2015), Study of Some Markers of Oxidative Stress Statues in Cardiovascular Disease Patients, Journal of Al-Nahrain University18 (3), 38-43.

[124] Giancarlo Aldini., Luca Gamberoni., Marica Orioli., Giangiacomo Beretta., and Luca Regazzoni.,(2006), Mass spectrometric characterization of covalent modification of human serum albumin by 4-hydroxy-trans-2nonenal, J. Mass Spectrom, 41, 1149–1161. [125] Ruaa Kareem Abbas Al-Radhi., and Raid M. H. Al- Salih.,(2012), Clinical Comparative Study for the Effects of Different Antihypertensive Drugs on Oxidative Stress and Lipid Profile in Thi-Qar/Iraq, University of Thi-Qar.

[126] Michael Poteser., and Ichiro Wakabayashi.,(2004), Serum albumin induces iNOS expression and NO production in RAW 267.4 macrophages, British Journal of Pharmacology,143, 143–151.

[127] Rakhee Y., Jai P., Sunil K., Manoj K., (2014), Evaluation of blood urea, creatinine and uric acid as markers of kidney functions in hypertensive patients: a prospective study. Ind J of Basic and Applied Med. R., 3(2), 682-689.

[128] Noor ul Amin., Raja Tahir Mahmood., M. Javaid Asad., Mudassar Zafar., and Asad Mehmood Raja.,(2014), Evaluating Urea and Creatinine Levels in Chronic Renal Failure Pre and Post Dialysis: A Prospective Study, Jouranl of cardiovascular disease,2,2,2330.

[129] Carl A., Ashwood E., Bruns D, (2010), Textbook Of Clinical Chemistryand Molecular Diagnostics, 5th ed, Elsevier, USA.

[130] Friedwald W.T., Levy R.I., Fredrickson D.S., (1972), Estimation of the concentration of low density lipoprotein cholesterol in plasma without use of ultracentrifuge, Clin.Chem., 18, 499-502.

- [131] Harvey R., Ferrier D., (2011), Lippincott's Illustrated Reviews Biochemistry, 5th ed., Walter Kluwer, Philadelphia.
- [132] Hasan E., (2010), Estimation of Serum Uric Acid, Urea and Creatinine in Essential Hypertensive Patients, Tikrit Med. J., 16(1), 152-159.

[133] Lisa M. Walker., J. Lyndal York., Syed Z. Imam., Syed F. Ali., Kenneth L. Muldrew., and Philip R. Mayeux.,(2001), Oxidative Stress and Reactive Nitrogen Species Generation during Renal Ischemia, toxecologlcal sciences 63, 143–148.

[134] S. R. Meenakshi .,and Rajni Agarwal.,(2013), Nitric Oxide Levels in Patients with Chronic Renal Disease , J.Clin Diagn Res., 7(7),1288–1290.

[135] Isra'a H. AL – Hamdani.,(2010), Estimation of Serum Uric Acid, Urea and Creatinine in Essential Hypertensive Patients, Tikrit Medical Journal, 16(1),152-158.

[136] ox S. I., (2004), Cardiac Output Blood Flow and Blood Pressure In: Human Physiology.8th ed. McGraw Hill: 406-439.

[137] Pragna P., Donald J.D., (2015), Hypertension-Related Congestive HeartFailure in West Africa: A Framework for Global Blood Pressure Control, JClin Hypertens (Greenwich)., 16, 8 pages.

[138] Hiroyuki Kobori., Akemi Katsurada., Yuri Ozawa., Ryousuke Satou.,
Kayoko Miyata., Naoki Hase., Yuki Suzaki., and Tatsuya Shoji., (2008),
Enhanced Intrarenal Oxidative Stress and Angiotensinogen in IgA
.Nephropathy Patients, Biochem Biophys Res Commun, 358(1), 156–163.

[139] Nagah A.A.Mohamed . ,and H.M.Hamad.,(2012), Serum Creatinine, albumin and urine protein in hypertensive patients, Indian Journal of Basic &

Applied Medical Research, 1, 4, 292-295.

[140] Mustafa Arici.,(2014), Clinical Assessment of a Patient with Chronic Kidney Disease, Faculty of Medicine, Hacettepe University, Ankara, Turkey.

[141] Kwon Moo Park., Ji-Yeon Byun., Cornelis Kramers., Jee In Kim., Paul L. Huang ., and Joseph V. Bonventre., (2003), Inducible Nitric-oxide Synthase Is an Important Contributor to Prolonged Protective Effects of Ischemic Preconditioning in the Mouse Kidney, The American Society for Biochemistry and Molecular Biology, Inc. ,278, 29,. 27256–27266.

[142] Koenig W., Sund M, Ernst E., Keil U., Rosenthal J., and Hombach
 V.,(1991), Association between plasma viscosity and blood pressure. Results
 from the MONICA-project Augsburg, Am J Hypertens, 4(6),529-36.

[143] Marisol Peña-Sánchez., Sergio González-García., Gretel Riverón-Forment., Otman Fernández-Concepción., Olivia Martínez-Bonne., Gisselle Lemus-Molina., Isabel Fernández-Almira., María de la Caridad Menéndez-Sainz., Alina González-Quevedo.,and Janis T. Eells., (2014), Association of Serum Antioxidant Enzymes and Nervous Tissue Markers in Hypertensive

Patients, World Journal of Cardiovascular Diseases, 4, 160-168.

[144]Carlos Kusano and Bucalen Ferrari., (2008), Total Antioxidant Capacity: a biomarker in biomedical and nutritional studies, Journal of Cell and Molecular Biology 7(1), 1-15.

[145]Nosratola D. Vaziri., Zhenmin Ni., Fariba Oveisi., Kaihui Liang., and Raj Pandian.,(2002), Enhanced Nitric Oxide Inactivation and Protein Nitration by Reactive Oxygen Species in Renal Insufficiency, American Heart Association, Inc., 39,135-141.

[146]Andréa E. M. Stinghen., Jean-Marc Chillon., Ziad A. Massy., and Agnès Boullier.,(2014), Differential Effects of Indoxyl Sulfate and Inorganic Phosphate in a Murine Cerebral Endothelial Cell Line, Toxins (Basel), 6(6), 1742–1760.

Appendix

(Subjects Questioners)

| | التاريخ: |
|--------|-------------------------|
| | تسلسل المريض: |
| | رقم المريض: |
| | الأسم: |
| | العمر: |
| الطول: | الوزن: |
| | نوع المرض: |
| | مدة المرض: |
| | هل هناك أمراض ثانية؟ |
| | هل المرض وراثي؟ |
| | العلاج المتعاطي |
| | السكن: |
| | العمل: |
| | تدخی <u>ن:</u> |

الخلاصة

ارتفاع الضغط والامراض ذات الصلة بها مثل امراض الكلى تتشارك في ان احد الاسباب الرئيسية المؤدية للاصابة بها هو تزايد الجهد التاكسدي والذي بدوره يزيد من شدة المرض ويفاقم اعراضه. الجزيئات الفعالة الناتجة من الجهد التاكسدي بالاضافة الى انها تسبب تلفا بالانسجة باكسدة الجزيئات الحيوية مثل الشريط النووي والدهون والبروتينات والسكريات، فهي تؤدي الى توليد وسائط ذات تاثيرات التهابية كامنة. الهدف من هذه الدراسة هو لبحث بعض مؤشرات الجهد التاكسدي في مرضى ارتفاع ضغط الدم ومرضى ارتفاع ضغط الدم المرتبط بالفشل الكلوي المزمن . بالاضافة الى بعض المؤشرات الكيموحيوية المتعلقة بهذه الامراض.

هذه الدراسة استلزمت 84 رجل تتراوح اعمارهم من (25-00) قُسمت بشكل متساوي الى ثلاث مجاميع, الاولى والثانية هي لمرضى ارتفاع ضغط الدم ومرضى ارتفاع ضغط الدم مع الكلى على التوالي من مستشفى اليرموك التعليمي، والثالثة فلرجال اصحاء مثلوا مجموعة السيطرة. لكل عينة في المجموعات الثلاث, تم قياس هذه المؤشرات: 4-هيدروكسي-2-نونينال انديوسد نايترك اوكسايد, الالبومين, اليوريا، الكرياتنين, البروتين الكلي.

قورنت النتائج بمجموعة السيطرة فمستويات 4-هيدروكسي-2-نونينال, انديوسد نايترك اوكسايد في الدم سجلت ارتفاعا معنويا (p<0.01) في كلا المرضين مقارنة بمجموعة السيطرة. بينما سجل الالبومين انخفاضا معنويا (p<0.01) في مستوياته. يظهر البروتين الكلي في الدم بشكل ملحوظ المستويات اقل (p<0.01) في كل من المجموعتين.

الارتفاع في مستويات مؤشرات الجهد التاكسدي يعزى الى التلف التاكسدي في الانسجة مما يسبب هذه الامراض الالتهابية. استنتج من هذه الدراسة بان هناك علاقة ايجابية بين الاكسدة الناتجة من هذه الامراض وتفاقمها وان التلف الناتج من الاكسدة يشمل النظام الدفاعي والجزيئات الحيوية . وتقترح الحاجة لزيادة اخذ مضادات الاكسدة كاجراء وقائي من هذه الامراض. جمهورية العراق





مصل 4-هيدروكسي-2-نونينال واوكسيد النتريك المستحث في مرضى ارتفاع ضغط الدم ومرضى ارتفاع ضغط الدم مع الكلى

رسالة

مقدمة إلى كليه العلوم جامعة النهرين وهي جزء من متطلبات نيل درجه الماجستير في علوم الكيمياء/(الكيمياء الحياتية).

من قبل

علي ظافر حميد

بكالوريوس علوم كيمياء/كلية العلوم/جامعة النهرين (2014)

> بأشراف الاستاذ المساعد الدكتور علاء حسين جواد

> > 1438 ربيع الاول

